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PART I—FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.
VIACOM INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
(Unaudited)

 

    

Quarter Ended
March 31,  

(in millions, except earnings per share amounts)   2010   2009  
Revenues   $        2,786  $        2,905 
Expenses:    

Operating    1,521   1,748 
Selling, general and administrative    653   633 
Depreciation and amortization    78   82 

    
 

   
 

Total expenses    2,252   2,463 
Operating income    534   442 
Interest expense, net    (113)   (109) 
Equity in net losses of investee companies    (28)   (33) 
Other items, net    (10)   (19) 

    
 

   
 

Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes    383   281 
Provision for income taxes    (138)   (101) 

    
 

   
 

Net earnings from continuing operations    245   180 
Discontinued operations, net of tax    2   -  

    
 

   
 

Net earnings (Viacom and noncontrolling interests)    247   180 
Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interests    (2)   (3) 

    
 

   
 

Net earnings attributable to Viacom   $ 245  $ 177 
    

 

   

 

Amounts attributable to Viacom:    
Net earnings from continuing operations   $ 243  $ 177 
Discontinued operations, net of tax    2   -  

    
 

   
 

Net earnings attributable to Viacom   $ 245  $ 177 
    

 

   

 

Basic earnings per share attributable to Viacom:    
Continuing operations   $ 0.40  $ 0.29 
Discontinued operations   $ -   $ -  
Net earnings   $ 0.40  $ 0.29 

Diluted earnings per share attributable to Viacom:    
Continuing operations   $ 0.40  $ 0.29 
Discontinued operations   $ -   $ -  
Net earnings   $ 0.40  $ 0.29 

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:    
Basic    607.6   606.8 
Diluted    609.6   607.1 

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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VIACOM INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)
 

   

(in millions, except par value)   

March 31,
2010   

December 31,
2009  

ASSETS    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $         358  $         298 
Receivables, net    2,329   2,881 
Inventory, net    848   779 
Deferred tax assets, net    123   147 
Prepaid and other assets    371   325 

    
 

   
 

Total current assets    4,029   4,430 
Property and equipment, net    1,124   1,179 
Inventory, net    4,100   3,731 
Goodwill    11,339   11,401 
Intangibles, net    524   570 
Other assets    490   589 

    
 

   
 

Total assets   $ 21,606  $ 21,900 
    

 

   

 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY    
Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable   $ 209  $ 248 
Accrued expenses    940   1,169 
Participants’ share and residuals    1,089   1,090 
Program rights obligations    407   404 
Deferred revenue    340   323 
Current portion of debt    40   123 
Other liabilities    420   394 

    
 

   
 

Total current liabilities    3,445   3,751 
Noncurrent portion of debt    6,745   6,650 
Participants’ share and residuals    587   739 
Program rights obligations    591   523 
Deferred tax liabilities, net    7   89 
Other liabilities    1,227   1,303 
Redeemable noncontrolling interest    154   168 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)    
Viacom stockholders’ equity:    

Class A Common stock, par value $0.001, 375.0 authorized; 52.4 and 52.4 outstanding, respectively    -    -  
Class B Common stock, par value $0.001, 5,000.0 authorized; 555.3 and 555.0 outstanding, respectively    1   1 
Additional paid-in capital    8,305   8,287 
Treasury stock, 151.5 common shares held in treasury    (5,725)   (5,725) 
Retained earnings    6,323   6,106 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)    (28)   35 

    
 

   
 

Total Viacom stockholders’ equity    8,876   8,704 
Noncontrolling interests    (26)   (27) 

    
 

   
 

Total equity    8,850   8,677 
    

 
   

 

Total liabilities and equity   $ 21,606  $ 21,900 
    

 

   

 

          

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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VIACOM INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
 
  

   

Quarter Ended
March 31,  

(in millions)        2010            2009      
OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Net earnings (Viacom and noncontrolling interests)   $ 247  $ 180 
Discontinued operations, net of tax    (2)   -  

    
 

   
 

Net earnings from continuing operations    245   180 
Reconciling items:    

Depreciation and amortization    78   82 
Feature film and program amortization    834   910 
Stock-based compensation    26   22 
Equity in investee companies, net of distributions    29   35 
Deferred income taxes    (17)   34 
Operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:    

Receivables    560   669 
Inventory, program rights and participations    (992)   (1,278) 
Accounts payable and other current liabilities    (286)   (484) 

Other, net    (79)   (20) 
    

 
   

 

Cash provided by operations    398   150 
    

 
   

 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Acquisitions and investments, net of cash acquired    13   (40) 
Capital expenditures    (16)   (14) 

    
 

   
 

Net cash flow used in investing activities    (3)   (54) 
    

 
   

 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
Borrowings    -    600 
Debt repayments    (276)   (1,201) 
Commercial paper    (16)   -  
Other, net    (33)   (21) 

    
 

   
 

Net cash flow used in financing activities    (325)   (622) 
    

 
   

 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents    (10)   (7) 
    

 
   

 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents    60   (533) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period    298   792 

    
 

   
 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period   $ 358  $ 259 
    

 

   

 

          

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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VIACOM INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Unaudited)
 

         

(in millions)  

Common
Stock

Outstanding
(shares)  

Common
Stock/APIC  

Treasury
Stock   

Retained
Earnings  

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)   

Total Viacom
Stockholders’

Equity   
Noncontrolling

Interests   Total Equity 
December 31, 2009  607.4 $ 8,288  $ (5,725)  $ 6,106  $ 35  $ 8,704  $ (27)  $ 8,677 
Adoption of accounting for consolidation of
variable interest entities as of January 1, 2010  -  -    -    (28)   -    (28)   (12)   (40) 

     
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

 607.4  8,288   (5,725)   6,078   35   8,676   (39)   8,637 
Net earnings  -  -    -    245   -    245   2   247 
Translation adjustments  -  -    -    -    (63)   (63)   (2)   (65) 

        
 

   
 

   
 

Comprehensive income        182   -    182 

Noncontrolling interests  -  (4)   -    -    -    (4)   13   9 
Share based compensation and other  0.3  22   -    -    -    22   -    22 

     
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

March 31, 2010  607.7 $ 8,306  $ (5,725)  $ 6,323  $ (28)  $ 8,876  $ (26)  $ 8,850 
     

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

                               

(in millions)  

Common
Stock

Outstanding
(shares)  

Common
Stock/APIC  

Treasury
Stock   

Retained
Earnings  

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)   

Total Viacom
Stockholders’

Equity   
Noncontrolling

Interests   Total Equity 
December 31, 2008  606.8 $ 8,187  $ (5,725)  $ 4,496  $ (49)  $ 6,909  $ 14  $ 6,923 
Net earnings  -  -    -    177   -    177   3   180 
Translation adjustments  -  -    -    -    (69)   (69)   (1)   (70) 
Other  -  -    -    -    4   4   -    4 

        
 

   
 

   
 

Comprehensive income        112   2   114 

Noncontrolling interests  -  -    -    -    -    -    (1)   (1) 
Share based compensation and other  0.1  21   -    -    -    21   -    21 

     
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

March 31, 2009  606.9 $ 8,208  $ (5,725)  $ 4,673  $ (114)  $ 7,042  $ 15  $ 7,057 
     

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

                               

See accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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VIACOM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Description of Business
Viacom Inc. including its consolidated subsidiaries (“Viacom” or the “Company”) is a leading global entertainment content company, engaging audiences on
television, motion picture, Internet, mobile and video game platforms through many of the world’s best known entertainment brands. Viacom operates through
two reporting segments: Media Networks, which includes MTV Networks (“MTVN”) and BET Networks (“BETN”); and Filmed Entertainment. The Media
Networks segment provides entertainment content for consumers in key demographics attractive to advertisers, content distributors and retailers. The Filmed
Entertainment segment produces, finances and distributes motion pictures and other entertainment content under the Paramount Pictures, Paramount Vantage,
Paramount Classics, MTV Films and Nickelodeon Movies brands. The Filmed Entertainment segment also continues to release certain pictures under the
DreamWorks brand. It also acquires films for distribution and has distribution relationships with third parties.

Basis of Presentation
Unaudited Interim Financial Statements
The accompanying unaudited consolidated quarterly financial statements have been prepared on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States (“GAAP”) for interim financial information and pursuant to the rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). In the opinion of
management, the accompanying unaudited financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting of only normal and recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair
presentation of the results of operations, financial position and cash flows for the periods presented. The results of operations for the periods presented are not
necessarily indicative of the results expected for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2010 or any future period. These statements should be read in conjunction
with the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, as filed with the SEC on February 11, 2010 (the “2009 Annual
Report”).

Use of Estimates
Preparing financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities as of the dates presented and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods presented. Significant estimates
inherent in the preparation of the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include estimates of film ultimate revenues, product returns, allowances for
doubtful accounts, potential outcome of uncertain tax positions, fair value of acquired assets and liabilities, fair value of stock based compensation and pension
benefit assumptions. Estimates are based on past experience and other considerations reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Accounting Changes
Accounting for Transfers of Financial Assets
In June 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued new guidance related to the transfer of financial assets that would have required the
Company to reflect receivables sold to third parties under the Company’s accounts receivable securitization programs as securitized borrowings beginning on
January 1, 2010. The new guidance did not affect our Consolidated Financial Statements as there was no activity under the programs during the quarter ended
March 31, 2010.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities
In June 2009, the FASB issued new guidance that amended the existing criteria for consolidating variable interest entities (“VIEs”). The new consolidation
criteria requires an ongoing qualitative assessment of which entity has the power to direct matters that most significantly impact the activities of a VIE and has the
obligation to absorb losses or benefits that could be potentially significant to the VIE. The new guidance was effective for the Company beginning January 1,
2010.
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VIACOM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
 
At December 31, 2009, as fully described in Note 3 of the 2009 Annual Report, the Company held a 49% minority equity interest in DW Funding LLC (“DW
Funding”), which owns the DreamWorks live-action film library. In connection with the adoption of the new accounting rules for VIEs, the Company
consolidated DW Funding beginning on January 1, 2010. The principal impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements was an increase in debt of
approximately $400 million and a corresponding increase in other net assets, principally film inventory. As more fully described in Note 9 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements, the Company acquired the remaining 51% of the equity in DW Funding in February 2010.

With respect to the Company’s other VIEs, our assessment of which entity has the power to direct matters that most significantly impact the activities of these
VIEs did not result in any changes to our previous conclusions as to which entity is the primary beneficiary of these VIEs. See Note 9 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information on the Company’s involvement with VIEs.

Discontinued Operations
Discontinued operations, net of tax, in 2010 reflect adjustments related to businesses previously sold.

Reclassification
Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2010 presentation.

NOTE 2. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per common share excludes potentially dilutive securities and is computed by dividing Net earnings attributable to Viacom by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the period. The determination of diluted earnings per common share includes the potential dilutive effect of
stock options, restricted share units (“RSUs”) and performance share units (“PSUs”) based upon the application of the treasury stock method. Anti-dilutive
common shares were excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per common share.

The following table sets forth the computation of the common shares outstanding utilized in determining basic and diluted earnings per common share and anti-
dilutive shares:
 
  
Common Shares Outstanding and Anti-dilutive Common Shares   

Quarter Ended
March 31,

(in millions)   2010   2009
Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic   607.6  606.8

Dilutive effect of RSUs and PSUs   2.0  0.3
      

Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted   609.6  607.1
      

Anti-dilutive common shares   37.0  44.9
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VIACOM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
 
NOTE 3. INVENTORY
 
   
Inventory
(in millions)   

March 31,
2010   

December 31,
2009  

Film inventory:    
Released, net of amortization   $ 1,016  $ 770 
Completed, not yet released    66   173 
In process and other    626   467 

    
 

   
 

Total film inventory, net of amortization    1,708   1,410 
Original programming:    

Released, net of amortization    1,018   956 
Completed, not yet released    5   6 
In process and other    421   451 

    
 

   
 

Total original programming, net of amortization    1,444   1,413 
Acquired program rights, net of amortization    1,624   1,504 
Merchandise and other inventory, net of allowance of $99 and $108    172   183 

    
 

   
 

Total inventory, net    4,948   4,510 
Less current portion of inventory, net    (848)   (779) 

    
 

   
 

Total inventory - noncurrent, net   $ 4,100  $ 3,731 
    

 

   

 

          

NOTE 4. DEBT
 

   
Debt
(in millions)   

March 31,
2010   

December 31,
2009  

Senior notes and debentures:    
Senior notes due 2011, 5.750%    193   193 
Senior notes due 2014, 4.375%    596   596 
Senior notes due 2015, 4.250%    250   250 
Senior notes due 2016, 6.250%    1,496   1,496 
Senior notes due 2017, 6.125%    497   497 
Senior notes due 2019, 5.625%    554   554 
Senior debentures due 2036, 6.875%    1,735   1,735 
Senior debentures due 2037, 6.750%    248   248 
Senior notes due 2055, 6.850%    750   750 

Commercial paper    -    16 
Capital lease and other obligations    466   438 

    
 

   
 

Total debt    6,785   6,773 
Less current portion    (40)   (123) 

    
 

   
 

Total non-current portion   $ 6,745  $ 6,650 
    

 

   

 

          

At March 31, 2010, the total unamortized net discount related to the senior notes and debentures was $24 million. The fair value of the Company’s senior notes
and debentures exceeded the carrying value by $381 million at March 31, 2010. The valuation of the Company’s publicly traded debt is based on quoted prices in
active markets.

At March 31, 2010, there were no amounts outstanding under the Company’s $3.25 billion revolving facility due December 2010. The credit facility has one
principal financial covenant that requires the Company’s interest coverage for the most recent four consecutive fiscal quarters to be at least 3.0x, which the
Company has met at March 31, 2010. At March 31, 2010, $3.221 billion was available under the revolving credit facility after deducting letters of credit.
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VIACOM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
 
NOTE 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

At March 31, 2010, the Company’s financial assets and liabilities reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements at fair value consist of marketable securities
and foreign exchange contracts. Fair value for marketable securities is determined utilizing a market approach based on quoted market prices in active markets at
period end. Fair value for foreign exchange contracts is determined utilizing a market-based approach. The following table summarizes the valuation of the
Company’s financial assets and liabilities at March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009:
 

     

Financial Asset (Liability)
(in millions)   Total   

Quoted Prices In
Active Markets for

Identical Assets
Level 1   

Significant Other
Observable

Inputs
Level 2   

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
Level 3  

March 31, 2010       
Marketable securities   $                      81  $ 81  $ -   $ -  
Foreign exchange contracts    1   -   1   -  

    
 

       
 

   
 

Total   $ 82  $ 81  $ 1  $ -  
    

 

       

 

   

 

December 31, 2009       
Marketable securities   $ 79  $ 79  $ -   $ -  
Other financial instruments    (57)   -   (3)   (54) 

    
 

       
 

   
 

Total   $ 22  $ 79  $ (3)  $ (54) 
    

 

       

 

   

 

                  

The $54 million of Level 3 other financial instruments as of December 31, 2009 related to the Company’s guarantee of certain debt of DW Funding. The
guarantee was terminated during the quarter. No gain or loss was recognized upon termination.

NOTE 6. PENSION

The Company’s defined pension plans principally consist of both funded and unfunded noncontributory plans covering the majority of domestic employees and
retirees. Net periodic benefit costs for the Company under its defined benefit pension plans consist of the following:
 

  
Net Periodic Benefit Costs   

Quarter Ended
March 31,  

(in millions)   2010   2009  
Service cost   $ 6  $ 10 
Interest cost    10   10 
Expected return on plan assets    (8)   (6) 
Recognized actuarial loss    2   5 

    
 

   
 

Net periodic benefit costs   $ 10  $ 19 
    

 

   

 

          

NOTE 7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

National Amusements, Inc. (“NAI”), through its wholly-owned subsidiary NAIRI, Inc., is the controlling stockholder of both Viacom and CBS Corporation.
Sumner M. Redstone, the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and controlling shareholder of NAI, is the Executive Chairman of the Board and Founder of both
Viacom and CBS Corporation. In addition, Shari Redstone, who is Sumner Redstone’s daughter, is the President of NAI and
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VIACOM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
 
the Vice Chair of the Board of both Viacom and CBS Corporation. George Abrams, one of the Company’s directors, serves on the boards of both NAI and
Viacom and Frederic Salerno, another of the Company’s directors, serves on the boards of both Viacom and CBS Corporation. Philippe Dauman, the Company’s
President and Chief Executive Officer, also serves on the boards of both NAI and Viacom.

Since the fall of 2008, Mr. Dauman has recused himself from activity as an NAI board member with respect to all matters relating to the restructuring of NAI’s
indebtedness. In addition, NAI’s board of directors has created a special committee that does not include Mr. Redstone or Mr. Dauman in order to consider issues
that may be perceived to create a conflict between their responsibility to Viacom and to NAI. Similarly, the Company’s independent directors act on behalf of the
Board of Directors when appropriate to address such issues. Transactions between Viacom and related parties are typically overseen by the Company’s
Governance and Nominating Committee.

NAI licenses films in the ordinary course of business for its motion picture theaters from all major studios, including Paramount. During the quarters ended
March 31, 2010 and 2009, Paramount earned revenues from NAI in connection with these licenses in the aggregate amounts of approximately $4 million and $6
million, respectively.

Viacom and CBS Corporation Related Party Transactions
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is involved in transactions with CBS Corporation and its various businesses (“CBS”) that result in the
recognition of revenues and expenses by Viacom. Transactions with CBS, through the ordinary course of business, are settled in cash.

Paramount earns revenues and recognizes expenses associated with the distribution of certain television products into the home entertainment market on behalf of
CBS. In connection with this agreement, Paramount made payments of $100 million to CBS during the quarters ended March 31, 2010 and 2009. Paramount also
earns revenues from CBS through leasing of studio space and licensing of certain film products. Additionally, the Media Networks segment recognizes
advertising revenues from CBS.

The Media Networks segment purchases television programming from CBS. The cost of such purchases is initially recorded as acquired program rights inventory
and amortized over the estimated period that revenues will be generated. Both of the Company’s segments recognize advertising expenses related to the
placement of advertisements with CBS.
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VIACOM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
 
The following table summarizes the transactions with CBS as included in the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements:
 

  
CBS Related Party Transactions   

Quarter Ended
March 31,

(in millions)   2010   2009
Consolidated Statements of Earnings     

Revenues   $ 80  $ 79
Operating expenses   $ 103  $ 113

   
March 31,

2010   
December 31,

2009
Consolidated Balance Sheets     

Accounts receivable   $ 11  $ 25
Other assets    -   1

        

Total due from CBS   $ 11  $ 26
        

Accounts payable   $ 4  $ 3
Participants’ share and residuals    200   178
Program rights obligations, current    123   132
Program rights obligations, noncurrent    239   185
Other liabilities    42   13

        

Total due to CBS   $ 608  $ 511
        

         

 
Other Related Party Transactions
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is involved in related party transactions with equity investees, principally related to investments in
unconsolidated VIEs as more fully described in Note 9 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. These related party transactions primarily relate to the provision
of advertising services, licensing of film and programming content and the distribution of films for which the impact on the Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements is as follows:
 

  
Other Related Party Transactions   

Quarter Ended
March 31,

(in millions)   2010   2009
Consolidated Statements of Earnings     

Revenues   $ 24  $ 108
Operating expenses   $ 7  $ 65

    
March 31,

2010   
December 31,

2009
Consolidated Balance Sheets     

Accounts receivable   $ 96  $ 112

Accounts payable   $ 51  $ 39
Participants’ share and residuals    -   47
Other liabilities    33   55
Current portion of debt    -   65
Noncurrent portion of debt    -   33

        

Total due to other related parties   $ 84  $ 239
        

         

All other related party transactions are not material to the periods presented.
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VIACOM INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
 
NOTE 8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As more fully described in Note 16 of the 2009 Annual Report, the Company’s commitments primarily consist of programming and talent commitments,
operating lease arrangements, purchase obligations for goods and services and future funding commitments related to certain equity investees. The Company is
also subject to a redeemable put option, payable in a foreign currency, with respect to an international subsidiary which expires in 2011 and is classified as
Redeemable noncontrolling interest in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. These arrangements result from the Company’s normal course of business and represent
obligations that may be payable over several years.

Contingencies
The Company has certain indemnification obligations with respect to leases associated with the previously discontinued operations of Famous Players and
Blockbuster. In addition, Viacom benefits from certain indemnities provided by the acquirer of Famous Players and by Blockbuster Inc. At March 31, 2010, these
lease commitments, primarily related to Famous Players, amounted to $822 million. The Company may also have exposure for certain other expenses related to
the leases, such as property taxes and common area maintenance. The Company has recorded a liability of $213 million with respect to such obligations. Based
on the Company’s consideration of financial information available to it, the lessees’ performance in meeting their lease obligations and the underlying economic
factors impacting the lessees’ business models, the Company believes its accrual is sufficient to meet any future obligations.

Legal Matters
Litigation is inherently uncertain and always difficult to predict. However, based on our understanding and evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances, the
Company believes that the legal matters described below and other litigation to which the Company is a party are not likely, in the aggregate, to have a material
adverse effect on its results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In March 2007, the Company filed a complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern District of New York against Google Inc. (“Google”) and its
wholly-owned subsidiary YouTube, alleging that Google and YouTube violated and continue to violate the Company’s copyrights. The Company is seeking both
damages and injunctive relief. In March 2010, the Company and Google filed motions for summary judgment.

In September 2007, Brantley, et al. v. NBC Universal, Inc., et al., was filed in the United States District Court for the Central District of California against the
Company and several other program content providers on behalf of a purported nationwide class of cable and satellite subscribers. The plaintiffs also sued several
major cable and satellite program distributors. Plaintiffs allege that separate contracts between the program providers and the cable and satellite operator
defendants providing for the sale of programming in specific tiers each unreasonably restrain trade in a variety of markets in violation of the Sherman Act. In
October 2009, the court dismissed, with prejudice, the plaintiff’s third amended complaint. The plaintiffs appealed the dismissal. The Company believes the
plaintiffs’ position in this litigation is without merit and intends to continue to vigorously defend this lawsuit.
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NOTE 9. SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW AND OTHER INFORMATION
 

  
Supplemental Cash Flow Information   

Quarter Ended
March 31,  

(in millions)   2010   2009  
Cash paid for interest   $ 62  $ 23 
Cash paid for income taxes   $ 205  $ 63 

   

  
Redeemable Noncontrolling Interest   

Quarter Ended
March 31,  

(in millions)   2010   2009  
Beginning balance   $ 168  $ 148 

Net earnings    1   1 
Distributions    (5)   -  
Translation adjustments    (10)   (4) 

    
 

   
 

Ending balance   $ 154  $ 145 
    

 

   

 

          

Investments in Variable Interest Entities
Unconsolidated Variable Interest Entities
At March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the Company’s aggregate investment carrying value in VIEs was $66 million and $144 million, respectively, and it
has future contractual funding commitments of $177 million at March 31, 2010. The impact of the Company’s unconsolidated VIEs on its Consolidated Financial
Statements, including related party transactions, is further described in Note 7 to our Consolidated Financial Statements.

Consolidated Variable Interest Entities
At each of March 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, there were $43 million of assets and $85 million of liabilities, respectively, included within the Company’s
Consolidated Balance Sheets in respect of MTV Tr3s’ investment interest in a Hispanic-oriented television broadcaster. The impact of the operating results of this
consolidated VIE was not significant to the Company’s revenues, expenses or operating income for the quarters ended March 31, 2010 and 2009.

Business Combinations
In February 2010, the Company acquired the remaining 51% of the equity in DW Funding in exchange for the assumption of approximately $400 million of debt.
The Company now owns 100% of the DreamWorks live-action film library. The pro forma impact of this acquisition was not material to the Company for all
periods presented.

Receivable Securitization Arrangements
During the quarter ended March 31, 2009, activity under the accounts receivable securitization programs consisted of $1.231 billion of proceeds from the sale of
receivables, $1.244 billion of cash remitted to the facility and $8 million of cash paid for interest. There were no amounts outstanding under the programs at
December 31, 2009 and no activity during the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

NOTE 10. REPORTING SEGMENTS

The following tables set forth the Company’s financial performance by reporting segment. The Company’s reporting segments have been determined in
accordance with the Company’s internal management structure. The
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Company manages its operations through two reporting segments: (i) Media Networks and (ii) Filmed Entertainment. Typical intersegment transactions include
the purchase of advertising by the Filmed Entertainment segment on Media Networks’ properties and the purchase of Filmed Entertainment’s feature films
exhibition rights by Media Networks. The elimination of such intercompany transactions in the Consolidated Financial Statements is included within eliminations
in the table below. Operating income is used as the measure of segment profit performance.
 

  
Revenues by Segment   

Quarter Ended
March 31,  

(in millions)   2010   2009  
Media Networks   $ 1,938  $ 1,865 
Filmed Entertainment    886   1,087 
Eliminations    (38)   (47) 

    
 

   
 

Total revenues   $ 2,786  $ 2,905 
    

 

   

 

          

   

  
Segment Operating Income (Loss)   

Quarter Ended
March 31,  

(in millions)   2010   2009  
Media Networks   $ 684  $ 629 
Filmed Entertainment    (86)   (123) 

    
 

   
 

Total segment operating income    598   506 
Corporate expenses    (63)   (61) 
Eliminations    (1)   (3) 

    
 

   
 

Total operating income    534   442 
Interest expense, net    (113)   (109) 
Equity in net losses of investee companies    (28)   (33) 
Other items, net    (10)   (19) 

    
 

   
 

Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes   $ 383  $ 281 
    

 

   

 

          

   

   
Total Assets   March 31,  December 31, 
(in millions)   2010   2009  
Media Networks   $ 15,939  $ 16,189 
Filmed Entertainment    5,417   5,549 
Corporate/Eliminations    250   162 

    
 

   
 

Total assets   $ 21,606  $ 21,900 
    

 

   

 

          

   

  
Revenues by Component   

Quarter Ended
March 31,  

(in millions)   2010   2009  
Advertising   $ 960  $ 936 
Feature film    823   1,043 
Affiliate fees    783   720 
Ancillary    258   253 
Eliminations    (38)   (47) 

    
 

   
 

Total revenues by component   $ 2,786  $ 2,905 
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition.

Management’s discussion and analysis of results of operations and financial condition is provided as a supplement to and should be read in conjunction with the
unaudited consolidated financial statements and related notes to enhance the understanding of our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.
Additional context can also be found in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009, as filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”) on February 11, 2010 (the “2009 Annual Report”). References in this document to “Viacom,” “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” mean
Viacom Inc. and our consolidated subsidiaries through which our various businesses are conducted, unless the context requires otherwise.

Significant components of management’s discussion and analysis of results of operations and financial condition include:
 

 •  Overview. The overview section provides a summary of Viacom’s business.
 

 
•  Consolidated Results of Operations. The consolidated results of operations section provides an analysis of our results on a consolidated basis for the

quarter ended March 31, 2010 compared to the quarter ended March 31, 2009.
 

 
•  Segment Results of Operations. The segment results of operations section provides an analysis of our results on a reportable operating segment basis for

the quarter ended March 31, 2010 compared to the quarter ended March 31, 2009.
 

 
•  Liquidity and Capital Resources. The liquidity and capital resources section provides a discussion of our cash flows for the quarter ended March 31,

2010 compared to the quarter ended March 31, 2009 and an update on our indebtedness.

OVERVIEW

We are a leading global entertainment content company, engaging audiences on television, motion picture, Internet, mobile and video game platforms through
many of the world’s best known entertainment brands, including MTV , VH1 , CMT , Logo , Nickelodeon , Nick at Nite , Nick Jr. , COMEDY CENTRAL ,
Spike TV , TV Land™, BET , Rock Band , AddictingGames , Atom , Neopets , Shockwave  and Paramount Pictures . Viacom’s global reach includes
approximately 170 channels and 450 digital media properties in more than 160 countries and territories.

We manage our operations through two reporting segments: Media Networks and Filmed Entertainment.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Our consolidated results of operations are presented below for the quarter ended March 31, 2010 and 2009.
 

   
Consolidated Results of Operations   

Quarter Ended
March 31,   Better/(Worse)  

(in millions)   2010   2009   $   %  
Revenues   $2,786  $2,905  $ (119)  (4)% 
Expenses:      

Operating    1,521   1,748   227  13  
Selling, general, and administrative    653   633   (20)  (3) 
Depreciation and amortization    78   82   4  5  

    
 

   
 

   
 

  
 

Total expenses    2,252   2,463   211  9  
Operating income    534   442   92  21  
Interest expense, net    (113)   (109)   (4)  (4) 
Equity in net losses of investee companies    (28)   (33)   5  15  
Other items, net    (10)   (19)   9  47  

    
 

   
 

   
 

  
 

Earnings from continuing operations before provision for income taxes    383   281   102  36  
Provision for income taxes    (138)   (101)   (37)  (37) 

    
 

   
 

   
 

  
 

Net earnings from continuing operations    245   180   65  36  
Discontinued operations, net of tax    2   -    2  NM  

    
 

   
 

   
 

  
 

Net earnings (Viacom and noncontrolling interests)    247   180   67  37  
Net losses (earnings) attributable to noncontrolling interests    (2)   (3)   1  33  

    
 

   
 

   
 

  
 

Net earnings attributable to Viacom   $ 245  $ 177  $ 68  38% 
    

 

   

 

   

 

  

 

Diluted EPS from continuing operations   $ 0.40  $ 0.29  $ 0.11  38% 
NM = not meaningful

Revenues
Worldwide revenues decreased $119 million, or 4%, to $2.786 billion in the quarter ended March 31, 2010 driven by a decrease of $201 million in Filmed
Entertainment revenues. The decrease principally reflects the success of the DVD release of Dreamworks Animation’s Madagascar: Escape 2 Africa in the prior
year period, for which there was no comparable title in 2010. Theatrical revenues also declined, primarily due to lower year-over-year revenues from the films
originally released in the fourth quarter, which were partially offset by the strength of our current quarter releases, including Shutter Island. Media Networks
contributed a partially offsetting increase of $73 million, principally reflecting increases in affiliate fees and advertising revenues.

Operating Income
Operating income increased $92 million, or 21%, to $534 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010. Media Networks contributed $55 million of the increase,
principally reflecting the higher affiliate and advertising revenues, partially offset by our continuing investment in programming. Filmed Entertainment’s
operating loss narrowed by $37 million, principally reflecting lower costs due to fewer theatrical releases in the quarter.

See the section entitled “Segment Results of Operations” for a more in-depth discussion of the revenues, expenses and operating income (loss) for each of the
Media Networks and Filmed Entertainment segments.

Equity in Net Losses of Investee Companies
Equity in net losses of investee companies was $28 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, compared with $33 million for 2009. Equity losses include our
share of the losses associated with our investments in EPIX, Rhapsody America and Viacom 18.
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Other Items, Net
Other items, net, reflects expenses of $10 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, compared with $19 million for 2009. The quarter ended March 31, 2009
included costs associated with our accounts receivable securitization programs, with no corresponding cost during the current quarter. The remaining decrease in
expenses in the current quarter is due to favorable variances from foreign exchange.

Provision for Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes was $138 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010. The effective income tax rate was 36% for the quarters ended March 31,
2010 and 2009.

Net Earnings Attributable to Viacom
Net earnings attributable to Viacom increased $68 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010, principally due to the increase in tax-effected operating income
described above. Diluted EPS from continuing operations increased $0.11 per diluted share from $0.29 in 2009 to $0.40 in 2010.

SEGMENT RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Operating income is used as the measure of segment profit performance. Transactions between reportable segments are accounted for as third-party arrangements
for the purposes of presenting reporting segment results of operations. Typical intersegment transactions include the purchase of advertising by the Filmed
Entertainment segment on Media Networks’ properties and the purchase of Filmed Entertainment’s feature films exhibition rights by Media Networks.

Media Networks
 

   
   

Quarter Ended
March 31,  Better/(Worse)  

(in millions)   2010   2009  $   %  
Revenues by Component       
Advertising   $ 960  $ 936 $ 24  3% 
Affiliate fees    783   720  63  9  
Ancillary    195   209  (14)  (7) 

           
 

  
 

Total revenues by component   $1,938  $1,865 $ 73  4% 
           

 
  

 

Expenses       
Operating   $ 715  $ 715 $ -   - % 
Selling, general and administrative    486   467  (19)  (4) 
Depreciation and amortization    53   54  1  2  

           
 

  
 

Total expenses   $1,254  $1,236 $ (18)  (1)% 
           

 
  

 

Operating Income   $ 684  $ 629 $ 55  9% 
           

 

  

 

                

Revenues

Our Media Networks segment generates revenues principally in three categories: (i) the sale of advertising time on our program services and digital properties,
(ii) the receipt of affiliate fees from cable television operators, direct-to-home satellite operators, mobile networks and other content distributors and (iii) ancillary
revenues, which include the creation and publishing of video games and other interactive products, home entertainment sales of our programming, the licensing
of our content to third parties and the licensing of our brands and properties for consumer products.
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Worldwide revenues increased $73 million to $1.938 billion in the quarter ended March 31, 2010. Increases in affiliate and advertising revenues were partially
offset by a decrease in ancillary revenues. Domestic revenues were $1.647 billion, an increase of $21 million, or 1%. International revenues were $291 million, an
increase of $52 million, or 22%, with foreign exchange contributing 8 percentage points to international growth.

Advertising
Worldwide advertising revenues increased $24 million, or 3%, to $960 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010. Domestic advertising revenues increased 1%,
reflecting a strengthening scatter market, partially offset by the effect of the weaker upfront sales completed in 2009. International advertising revenues increased
14%, with foreign exchange contributing 9 percentage points to international growth.

Affiliate Fees
Worldwide affiliate fees increased $63 million, or 9%, to $783 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010, principally due to rate growth. Domestic affiliate
revenues increased 7% and international affiliate revenues increased 17%, with foreign exchange contributing 8 percentage points to international growth. The
period reflects a difficult comparison against certain domestic affiliate revenues in 2009 that did not recur in 2010, which had a 4-percentage point negative
impact on domestic affiliate revenue growth.

Ancillary
Worldwide ancillary revenues decreased $14 million, or 7%, to $195 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010. Domestic ancillary revenues decreased 22%,
principally driven by lower Rock Band sales reflecting the mix of Rock Band product offerings. The quarter ended March 31, 2009 included higher sales from the
continued roll out of Rock Band 2. The decline in domestic revenues also includes lower home entertainment revenues. International ancillary revenues increased
46%, principally reflecting increased television license fees. Foreign exchange contributed 5 percentage points to international growth.

Expenses
Media Networks segment expenses consist of operating expenses, selling, general and administrative (“SG&A”) expenses and depreciation and amortization.
Operating expenses comprise costs related to original and acquired programming, including programming amortization, expenses associated with the
manufacturing and distribution of video games and home entertainment products, and consumer products licensing and participation fees. SG&A expenses
consist primarily of employee compensation, marketing, research and professional service fees and facility and occupancy costs. Depreciation and amortization
expenses reflect depreciation of fixed assets, including transponders financed under capital leases, and amortization of finite-lived intangible assets.

Total expenses increased $18 million, or 1%, to $1.254 billion in the quarter ended March 31, 2010, principally driven by an increase in programming costs,
reflecting our continued investment, and employee costs, partially offset by lower Rock Band costs.

Operating
Operating expenses were flat at $715 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2010. Distribution and other expenses decreased $27 million, or 17%, principally
driven by lower Rock Band costs. Production and programming expenses increased $27 million, or 5%, reflecting expenses associated with our continuing
investment in programming.

Selling, General and Administrative
SG&A increased $19 million, or 4%, to $486 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010, principally due to higher employee costs.
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Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization was essentially flat at $53 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

Operating Income
Operating income increased $55 million, or 9%, to $684 million in the quarter ending March 31, 2010, principally reflecting the higher affiliate and advertising
revenues, partially offset by our continuing investment in programming.

Filmed Entertainment
 

   
   

Quarter Ended
March 31,   Better/(Worse)  

(in millions)   2010  2009   $   %  
Revenues by Component      
Theatrical   $267  $ 283  $ (16)  (6)% 
Home entertainment    297   452   (155)  (34) 
Television license fees    259   308   (49)  (16) 
Ancillary    63   44   19  43 

    
 

   
 

   
 

  
 

Total revenues by component   $886  $1,087  $ (201)  (18)% 
    

 
   

 
   

 
  

 

Expenses      
Operating   $843  $1,078  $ 235  22% 
Selling, general, & administrative    106   106   -   -  
Depreciation & amortization    23   26   3  12 

    
 

   
 

   
 

  
 

Total expenses   $972  $1,210  $ 238  20% 
    

 
   

 
   

 
  

 

Operating Income (Loss)   $ (86)  $ (123)  $ 37  NM  
    

 

   

 

   

 

  

 

                 

NM = not meaningful

Revenues

Our Filmed Entertainment segment generates revenues worldwide principally from: (i) the theatrical release and/or distribution of motion pictures, (ii) home
entertainment, which includes sales of DVDs, Blu-ray and other products relating to the motion pictures we release theatrically and direct-to-DVD, as well as
certain other programming, including content we distribute on behalf of third parties and (iii) license fees paid worldwide by third parties for exhibition rights on
pay and basic cable television, broadcast television, syndicated television and digital media outlets. The Filmed Entertainment segment also generates ancillary
revenues from providing production services to third parties, primarily at Paramount’s studio lot, consumer products licensing, game distribution and distribution
of content on digital platforms.

Worldwide revenues decreased $201 million, or 18%, to $886 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010. Domestic revenues were $422 million, a decline of
$171 million, or 29%. International revenues were $464 million, a decline of $30 million, or 6%, including an 8-percentage point favorable impact from foreign
exchange.

Theatrical
Worldwide theatrical revenues decreased $16 million, or 6%, to $267 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010, principally driven by the timing and mix of
films. The prior year period continued to benefit from several fourth quarter 2008 releases, including Madagascar: Escape 2 Africa. This impact was partially
offset by the strength of our current quarter releases, including Shutter Island and DreamWorks Animation’s How to Train
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Your Dragon. During the current quarter we released three films. In the comparable period of 2009, we released six films, which included DreamWorks
Animation’s Monsters vs. Aliens. Domestic theatrical revenues decreased 9% and international theatrical revenues decreased 2%. Foreign exchange had a 12-
percentage point favorable impact on international theatrical revenues.

Home Entertainment
Worldwide home entertainment revenues decreased $155 million, or 34%, to $297 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010. The decrease principally reflects
the success of the Madagascar: Escape 2 Africa DVD release in the prior year period, for which there was no comparable title in 2010. The current period
benefited from the DVD release of Up in the Air and continuing sales associated with the fourth quarter releases of Star Trek, Transformers: Revenge of the
Fallen and G.I. Joe: The Rise of the Cobra. Domestic and international home entertainment revenues decreased 44% and 19%, respectively, with a 10-percentage
point favorable impact from foreign exchange on international revenues.

Television License Fees
Worldwide television license fees decreased $49 million, or 16%, to $259 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010, principally reflecting lower pay TV fees
driven by the number and mix of available titles.

Ancillary
Ancillary revenues increased $19 million, or 43%, to $63 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, due to higher licensing and merchandising revenues
associated with Transformers: Revenge of the Fallen and G.I. Joe: The Rise of Cobra, as well as higher digital revenues.

Expenses
Filmed Entertainment segment expenses consist of operating expenses, SG&A expenses and depreciation and amortization expenses. Operating expenses
principally include the amortization of production costs of our released feature films (including participations accrued under our third-party distribution
arrangements), print and advertising expenses and other distribution costs. SG&A expenses include employee compensation, facility and occupancy costs,
professional service fees and other overhead costs. Depreciation and amortization expense includes depreciation of fixed assets and amortization of acquired
intangibles.

Total expenses decreased $238 million, or 20%, to $972 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010. The reduction in total expenses is principally due to lower
costs associated with third party distribution arrangements and fewer theatrical releases.

Operating
Operating expenses decreased $235 million, or 22%, to $843 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010. Distribution and other costs, principally print and
advertising expenses, decreased by $129 million, or 22%, primarily related to lower home entertainment expenses associated with third party distribution
arrangements, the lower number of theatrical releases and cost savings initiatives. Film costs declined $106 million, or 22%, primarily due to lower participation
costs associated with third party distribution arrangements.

Selling, General and Administrative
SG&A was flat at $106 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization decreased $3 million, or 12%, to $23 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010.
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Operating Income (Loss)
An operating loss of $86 million was recorded in the quarter ended March 31, 2010 compared with an operating loss of $123 million in 2009. This improvement
primarily reflects lower costs resulting from the fewer number of theatrical releases in the quarter.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Sources and Uses of Cash
Our primary source of liquidity is cash provided through the operations of our businesses. During 2009, we strengthened our balance sheet by repaying amounts
outstanding under our revolving credit facility and lengthening our maturities of public debt. Our cash flows from operations, together with our existing $3.25
billion revolving credit facility, provide us with adequate resources to fund our anticipated ongoing cash requirements. We terminated our accounts receivable
securitization programs in April 2010 because we had access to sufficient sources of liquidity at better terms.

Our revolving credit facility is scheduled to mature in December 2010. We are considering renewing this facility at a reduced level reflecting our strengthened
balance sheet and anticipated liquidity needs. There were no amounts outstanding under the credit facility at March 31, 2010. Our credit facility has one principal
financial covenant that requires our interest coverage for the most recent four consecutive fiscal quarters to be at least 3.0x, which we met at March 31, 2010.

Our principal uses of cash include the creation of new programming and film content, acquisitions of third-party content, ongoing investments in our businesses,
capital expenditures, commitments to equity affiliates and acquisitions of businesses. We also use cash for interest and tax payments and discretionary share
repurchases, as deemed appropriate. We manage our use of cash with a goal of maintaining total debt levels within rating agency guidelines to maintain an
investment grade credit rating.

Cash Flows
Cash and cash equivalents increased by $60 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

Operating Activities
Cash provided by operations was $398 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, an increase of $248 million compared with the same period in 2009. The
increase is primarily due to lower participation costs associated with third party distribution arrangements and increased earnings, partially offset by higher
income tax and interest payments. Income tax payments reflect various income tax return extension payments made during the quarter that were not required in
the prior year due to certain tax benefits associated with our fourth quarter 2008 restructuring and other charges. Interest payments reflect the timing of payments
due on the senior notes we issued in the third quarter of 2009.

Investing Activities
Cash used in investing activities was $3 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2010, compared with $54 million in the same period of 2009. The decrease is
primarily due to cash acquired from DW Funding and lower spending on acquisitions and investments.

Financing Activities
Cash used in financing activities was $325 million for the quarter ended March 31, 2010. The net outflow is primarily driven by the repayment of DW Funding
debt. Cash used in financing activities of $622 million in the quarter ended March 31, 2009 was driven by the reduction in amounts outstanding under our
revolving credit facility.
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Capital Resources
Capital Structure and Debt
At March 31, 2010, total debt was $6.785 billion, an increase of $12 million from $6.773 billion at December 31, 2009. Cash and cash equivalents were $358
million, an increase of $60 million from $298 million at December 31, 2009. There were no amounts outstanding under the credit facility at March 31, 2010 or
under our commercial paper program, and $3.221 billion was available under the revolving credit facility, after deducting letters of credit issued under the facility.
Current portion of debt primarily consists of the portion of capital leases payable in the next twelve months.

Stock Repurchase Program
Since December 31, 2008, we have not purchased any shares under our $4.0 billion stock repurchase program, but may resume purchases in the future based on a
variety of factors. We currently have $1.275 billion of capacity remaining under the program.

OTHER MATTERS

Related Party Transactions

In the ordinary course of business we enter into transactions with related parties, including NAI, CBS Corporation and their respective subsidiaries and affiliates,
and companies which we account for under the equity method of accounting. For additional information, see Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This quarterly report on Form 10-Q, including “Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition,” contains both
historical and forward-looking statements. All statements which are not statements of historical fact are, or may be deemed to be, forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements reflect our current expectations concerning future results, objectives, plans and goals, and involve known and unknown risks,
uncertainties and other factors that are difficult to predict and which may cause actual results, performance or achievements to differ. These risks, uncertainties
and other factors include, among others: the public acceptance of our programs, motion pictures and games on the various platforms on which they are
distributed; economic conditions generally, and in advertising and retail markets in particular; competition for audiences and distribution; the impact of piracy;
technological developments and their effect in our markets and on consumer behavior; fluctuations in our results due to the timing, mix and availability of our
motion pictures and games; changes in the Federal communications laws and regulations; other domestic and global economic, business, competitive and/or
regulatory factors affecting our businesses generally; and other factors described in our news releases and filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
including but not limited to our 2009 Annual Report on Form 10-K and reports on Form 10-Q and Form 8-K. The forward-looking statements included in this
document are made only as of the date of this document, and we do not have any obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements to reflect
subsequent events or circumstances.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

We are exposed to the impact of interest rate changes, foreign currency fluctuations and changes in the market value of investments. In the normal course of
business, we may employ established and prudent policies and procedures to manage our exposure principally to changes in interest rates and foreign exchange
risks. The objective of such policies and procedures is to manage exposure to market risks in order to minimize the impact on earnings and cash flows. We do not
enter into financial instrument transactions for speculative purposes.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”)) were effective, based on the
evaluation of these controls and procedures required by Rule 13a-15(b) or 15d-15(b) of the Exchange Act.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2010 that have materially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II—OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

Since our 2009 Annual Report, there have been no material developments in the material legal proceedings in which we are involved, except as set forth in Note 8
to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere in this report.

Item  1A. Risk Factors.

A wide range of risks may affect our business and financial results, now and in the future. We consider the risks described in our 2009 Annual Report to be the
most significant. There may be other currently unknown or unpredictable economic, business, competitive, regulatory or other factors that could have material
adverse effects on our future results.
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Item 6. Exhibits.
 
Exhibit No.  Description of Exhibit
    10.1*  Summary of Viacom Inc. Compensation for Outside Directors.

    10.2*  Employment Agreement between Viacom Inc. and Philippe P. Dauman, as amended and restated as of April 14, 2010.

    31.1*
 

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Viacom Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

    31.2*
 

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Viacom Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

    32.1**
 

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of Viacom Inc. furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

    32.2**
 

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer of Viacom Inc. furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

    101.INS**  XBRL Instance Document.

    101.SCH**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema.

    101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase.

    101.DEF**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase.

    101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase.

    101.PRE**  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase.
 
* Filed herewith.
** Furnished herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

 
    VIACOM INC.

Date: April 29, 2010   By:  

 
/s/    Thomas E. Dooley        

   Thomas E. Dooley

   

Senior Executive Vice President,
Chief Administrative Officer and

Chief Financial Officer

Date: April 29, 2010   By:  

 
/s/    James W. Barge        

   James W. Barge

   

Executive Vice President,
Controller, Tax & Treasury
(Chief Accounting Officer)
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25



Exhibit 10.1

Summary of Viacom Inc. Compensation for Outside Directors
(Effective as of June 10, 2010)

Cash Compensation
 

 
•  An annual Board retainer of $75,000, payable in equal installments quarterly in advance. The Vice Chair of the Board receives an annual retainer of

$200,000;
 

 
•  The Chairs of the Audit and Compensation Committees each receive an annual retainer of $20,000, payable in equal installments quarterly in

advance, and the members of those Committees receive a per meeting attendance fee of $2,000; and
 

 
•  The Chair of the Governance and Nominating Committee receives an annual retainer of $15,000, payable in equal installments quarterly in advance,

and the members of that Committee receive a per meeting attendance fee of $1,500.

Outside directors may elect to defer their cash compensation under the Viacom Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Outside Directors.

Equity Compensation

Stock Options:
 

 
•  An annual grant on January 31 of each year of stock options to purchase a number of shares of Class B common stock equal in value to $70,000,

calculated using the Black-Sholes valuation method. The stock options vest in equal annual installments over a period of three years from the date of
grant and have an exercise price equal to the closing price of Viacom’s Class B common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of grant.

Restricted Share Units (RSUs):
 

 

•  An annual grant on January 31st of each year of RSUs of Class B common stock, the number of which is determined by dividing (i) $70,000 by
(ii) the fair market value of one share of Class B common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of grant. The RSUs vest one year from
the date of grant and are payable to outside directors in shares of Class B common stock upon vesting unless the outside director elects to defer
settlement of the RSUs to a future date. Outside directors are entitled to receive dividend equivalents on the RSUs in the event the Company pays a
regular cash dividend on its Class B common stock.



Exhibit 10.2

April 14, 2010
 

Philippe P. Dauman
c/o Viacom Inc.
1515 Broadway
New York, NY 10036

Dear Mr. Dauman:

Viacom Inc. (“Employer” and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Company”), having an address at 1515 Broadway, New York, New York 10036,
agrees to amend and restate your employment agreement, originally dated September 5, 2006 (the “Original Employment Agreement”) and subsequently
amended on March 21, 2007, April 24, 2007 and August 28, 2008 and to continue to employ you and you agree to continue such employment upon the terms and
conditions of this amended and restated agreement (this “Agreement”). This Agreement is effective as of April 14, 2010 (the “Amendment Date”).

1.    Term. The term of your employment hereunder commenced on September 5, 2006 (the “Start Date”) and, unless terminated by Employer or
you pursuant to paragraph 10 or otherwise terminated pursuant to paragraph 9 or 11, shall continue through and until December 31, 2016. The period from the
Start Date through December 31, 2016 shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Employment Term” notwithstanding any earlier termination of your employment
pursuant to paragraph 9, 10 or 11.

2.    Titles and Authority.

(a)  Officer Positions and Reporting Lines. You will have the title of President and Chief Executive Officer of Employer and will have the full
powers, responsibilities and authorities customary for the chief executive officer of corporations of the size, type and nature of Employer, including, without
limitation, those powers, responsibilities and authorities you had immediately prior to the Amendment Date. You will report solely and directly to the Board of
Directors of Employer (the “Board”) and, for so long as Sumner M. Redstone serves as Executive Chairman and Founder of Employer, to the Executive
Chairman and Founder. Other than when Sumner M. Redstone is serving as the Executive Chairman and Founder, you will be the highest ranking executive of the
Company.

(b)  Direct Reports. The heads of the Company’s three business units (MTV Networks, Paramount Motion Picture Group and BET Networks) and of
any business units and operating divisions added in the future, and all executive officers of the Company, will report solely and directly to you. Notwithstanding
the preceding



sentence, you shall have the authority to cause any business unit or operating division head, and any executive officer of the Company, to report directly to
another executive officer of the Company.

(c)   Service on the Board and with Subsidiaries. You currently serve as a member of the Board and will continue that service following the
Amendment Date. The Board will nominate you for reelection to the Board at the expiration of each term of office, and you agree to serve as a member of the
Board for each period for which you are so elected. You shall, subject to your election as such from time to time and without additional compensation, serve
during the Employment Term in such additional offices of comparable or greater stature and responsibility in the subsidiaries of Employer and as member of any
committee of the Board or of the board of directors of any of Employer’s subsidiaries, to which you may be appointed or elected from time to time.

(d)   Full-Time Services and Other Activities. During your employment under this Agreement, you agree to devote your entire business time,
attention and energies to the business of the Company, except for vacations, illness or incapacity. However, nothing in this Agreement shall preclude you from
serving as a member of the board of directors of any charitable, educational, religious, entertainment industry trade, public interest or public service organization,
in each instance not inconsistent with the business practices and policies of the Company, or from devoting reasonable periods of time to the activities of the
aforementioned organizations or from managing your personal investments, provided that such activities do not materially interfere with the performance of your
duties and responsibilities hereunder. Except for your service on (A) the Board, (B) the board of directors of Employer subsidiaries, (C) the board of directors of
Lafarge, S.A. or (D) the board of directors or similar governing body of your family foundation and of any other entity all of the beneficial interests of which are
owned by you and/or members of your family and/or Thomas E. Dooley and/or members of his family, you shall not serve on the board of directors or similar
governing body of any business company or other business entity without the prior consent of the Board. The Board recognizes that you have personal
investments directly or indirectly (through commingled investment funds) in media/entertainment companies (i) which are private companies and which are
identified on Schedule A hereto and (ii) in which you own not more than two percent (2%) of any of the debt or equity securities (or options or other rights to
purchase the debt or equity securities) and which are business organizations that are filing reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) (the “Public Company Investments”). In addition to your right to
generally manage your personal investments as set forth above, you specifically may retain the investments identified on Schedule A and the Public Company
Investments, and make new (X) Public Company Investments, (Y) investments in any company identified on Schedule A and (Z) investments in commingled
investment funds which hold interests in media/entertainment companies. In each of the foregoing cases, you shall retain or make such investments only as a
“passive” investor without managerial or supervisory rights. In the event that the Company transacts business with or proposes to enter into any transaction with
any company identified on Schedule A, you will recuse yourself from all
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decisions relating to such business or transaction (whether on behalf of the Company or such other entity).

(e)   Location. You shall render your services under this Agreement from Employer’s executive offices in the New York metropolitan area (except for
services rendered during business trips as may be reasonably necessary), and you shall not be required to relocate outside of the New York metropolitan area.

3.     Cash Compensation.

(a)   Salary. During the Employment Term after the Amendment Date, Employer shall pay you a base salary at the annual rate of Three Million Five
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($3,500,000) per annum. The Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Compensation Committee”) will review your salary at
least annually and may increase (but not decrease, including as it may be increased from time to time) the same. The result of each such annual review shall be
reported to you by the Compensation Committee promptly after it occurs. The amount of annual base salary actually paid to you will be reduced to the extent you
elect to defer such salary under the terms of any deferred compensation or savings plan or arrangement maintained or established by the Company. Your annual
base salary payable hereunder, without reduction for any amounts deferred as described in the preceding sentence, is referred to herein as the “Salary”. Employer
shall pay the portion of the Salary not deferred at your election in accordance with its generally applicable payroll practices for senior executives, but not less
frequently than in equal monthly installments.

(b)  Annual Bonus Compensation. In addition to your Salary, you shall be eligible to earn an annual cash bonus for each whole or partial year during
the Employment Term, determined and payable as follows (the “Bonus”):

(i)  Your Bonus for each whole year during the Employment Term will be based upon achievement of one or more performance goals established by
the Compensation Committee, which may include individualized performance goals applicable uniquely to you, and shall be determined in accordance with
the Employer’s Senior Executive Short-Term Incentive Plan, as the same may be amended from time to time (together with any successor plan, the “Senior
Executive STIP”). Any company-wide financial performance goal(s) applicable to you will, under the Senior Executive STIP, be the same as the
performance goal(s) used to determine the amount of bonus payable to any other executive of Employer who participates in the Senior Executive STIP and
who has corporate-wide responsibilities; provided, however, that, for each shortened performance period described in paragraph 3(b)(iii) below, the
applicable performance goal shall be adjusted to reflect budgeted Company performance for such shortened performance period. You shall have the
opportunity to make suggestions to the Compensation Committee prior to the determination of the performance goal(s) for the Senior Executive STIP for
each performance period, but the Compensation Committee will have final power and authority concerning the establishment of such goal(s).
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(ii)  Your target bonus for each whole year during the Employment Term starting in 2010 shall be Twelve Million Dollars ($12,000,000); provided
that the Compensation Committee will review your target bonus at least annually and may increase (but not decrease, including as it may be increased from
time to time) the same. The result of each such annual review shall be reported to you by the Compensation Committee promptly after it occurs. Your target
bonus, as it may be so increased from time to time, is referred to herein as the “Target Bonus”. As the actual amount payable to you as Bonus will be
dependent upon the achievement of performance goal(s) referred to in paragraph 3(b)(i), your actual Bonus may be less than, greater than or equal to the
Target Bonus. In no event, however, will your Bonus for any full fiscal year be greater than two (2) times the Target Bonus.

(iii)  The Company has changed its fiscal period from the calendar year to a fiscal year ending each September 30, with the transition period to be the
short year January 1 – September 30, 2010. As a result of this change, the Employment Term after the Amendment Date may include two shortened
performance periods: (x) a short fiscal year January 1 – September 30, 2010 and (y) a partial Company fiscal year October 1 – December 31, 2016. Your
annual Target Bonus for these periods will be pro rated to reflect the shorter performance periods.

(iv)  Your Bonus for any year shall be payable by the last day of the second month of the following fiscal year. For the avoidance of doubt, it is
understood that you will receive the Bonus to which you are entitled for each whole and partial fiscal year in which you were employed, even if you are not
employed on the payment date described in the preceding sentence or on the actual date on which bonuses are paid for such year.

(v)  In the event that the current Senior Executive STIP is amended or terminated, you will be given an opportunity under the amended or successor
plan to earn bonus compensation equivalent to the amount that you could have earned under this paragraph 3(b) but subject to the same limitations.

4.    Long Term Compensation. In addition to your Salary and Bonus, you shall receive the following grants of long-term compensation under the
Employer’s 2006 Long-Term Management Incentive Plan (together with any successor plan, the “LTMIP”):

(a)  Stock Option Grants.

(i)  In periods prior to the Amendment Date, you received awards in respect of Employer’s Class B Common Stock (the “Shares”).

(ii)  For periods after 2009 and continuing for so long as you remain employed pursuant to this Agreement, you will receive an annual award of stock
options with a value, determined under the Financial Accounting Standards
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Codification (FASB ASC) Topic 718, employing the same assumptions and methodologies as used for Employer’s financial statements, of Six Million
Dollars ($6,000,000). Each award of stock options will have a per share exercise price equal to the per share closing price of the Shares on the date of
grant, a term of eight years and will vest in four equal annual installments on the first four anniversaries of the grant date (or, if earlier, on the last day of the
Employment Term) assuming that your employment with Employer continues through the relevant vesting date (but subject to accelerated vesting as
provided in this Agreement). Each annual award of stock options pursuant to this paragraph 4(a)(ii) will be made to you at the same time that Employer
awards stock options to its other senior executives, but no later than June 30 of each calendar year.

(iii)  In addition to the annual stock option awards described in paragraph 4(a)(ii), on the third business day following the date (the “Announcement
Date”) on which the Company publicly announces the extension of the Employment Term pursuant to this Agreement, you will receive an award of stock
options under the LTMIP to purchase an aggregate of two million (2,000,000) Shares with a per share exercise price equal to the per share closing price of
the Shares on such date. The stock options awarded to you on the Announcement Date shall have a term of eight years and shall vest in four equal annual
installments on the first four anniversaries of the Announcement Date assuming that your employment with Employer continues through the relevant
vesting date (but subject to accelerated vesting as provided in this Agreement).

(iv)  Except as otherwise provided herein, your stock options will have exercisability, expiration and other terms and conditions that conform to
Employer’s standard practices for stock options awarded to senior executives and that are no less favorable to you than the terms applicable to any other
senior executive of the Company awarded stock options at the same time. Any Shares delivered upon exercise of any stock options granted pursuant to this
Agreement will be fully vested and nonforfeitable and registered on Form S-8 or a different registration statement of similar import.

(v)  Following the termination of your employment with Employer for any reason other than a termination of your employment pursuant to
paragraph 10(a), any stock options granted to you by the Employer either before, on or after the Amendment Date shall remain outstanding and exercisable
until the end of the three (3) year period from the Termination Date (as defined in Section 10(d)(i)) or, if earlier, the stock option’s normal expiration date;
provided that, if the applicable option award specifically provides for a longer post-employment period to exercise such option, such longer period shall
apply. By executing this Agreement, the parties agree that any stock options granted to you prior to the Amendment Date shall be deemed amended to
reflect the provisions of this paragraph 4(a)(v).

(b)  Performance Share Units. Beginning with calendar year 2007 and continuing for so long as you remain employed pursuant to this Agreement,
you will also
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receive an annual award of performance share units (“PSUs”) under the LTMIP. PSUs are notional units of measurement and represent the right to receive a
number of Shares determined on the basis of the performance of the Shares in comparison to the performance of the common stock of companies comprising the
Standard & Poor’s 500 Composite Index (the “S&P 500”) (as adjusted as described below), on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

(i)  Grants of PSUs. Awards of PSUs will be made to you as of January 1 of each year during the Employment Term (each a “Grant Date”), with the
first award having been made as of January 1, 2007. The target amount of Shares for each annual award of PSUs (the “Target Award”) is determined by
dividing Six Million Dollars ($6,000,000) by the average per share closing price of the Shares on the New York Stock Exchange (or other principal stock
exchange on which the Shares are then listed) for the 10 trading days prior to the Grant Date, rounded up to the nearest whole Share. The date as of which
the number of Shares to be received under each award shall be computed (that award’s “Determination Date”) will be the December 31 immediately
preceding the third anniversary of the Grant Date (including for awards the third anniversary of whose Grant Date will occur after the end of the
Employment Term), provided, however, that in the event your employment with Employer terminates in a Qualifying Termination (as defined below) prior
to the third anniversary of the Grant Date of an award of PSUs, the Determination Date for such award will be the effective date of your termination of
employment. (By way of illustration, except in the case of a Qualifying Termination the Determination Date for your award of PSUs for 2007 was
December 31, 2009.) Each award of PSUs will be forfeited in full, and no Shares will be delivered to you in connection therewith, if your employment with
Employer terminates before the Determination Date for the award for any reason other than a Qualifying Termination.

(ii)  Valuation of PSUs. As of the Determination Date for an award of PSUs, the TSR (as defined below) of the Shares over the relevant
Measurement Period (as defined below) will be measured against the TSR of the common stock of the companies comprising the Reference Group (as
defined below) over the same Measurement Period. Subject to paragraph 4(b)(iii), the percentile ranking of the TSR of the Shares as compared to the
companies comprising the Reference Group will be used to calculate the number of Shares that you will receive, in accordance with the following schedule
(the “Schedule”).
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Schedule

 

 
•    If Employer achieves less than the 25  percentile TSR, the award of PSUs will be forfeited
 

 
•    If Employer achieves the 25  percentile TSR, the number of Shares to be delivered under the award
will be 25% of the Target Award
 

 
•    If Employer achieves the 50  percentile TSR, the number of Shares to be delivered under the award
will be 100% of the Target Award
 

 
•    If Employer achieves the 100  percentile TSR (that is, if it is the first ranked company in the Reference
Group for TSR), the number of Shares to be delivered under the award will be 300% of the Target Award
 

For Employer achievement at any intermediate points between the 25  and 50  percentile, or between the 50  percentile and the 100  percentile, the number of
Shares to be delivered will be interpolated between the respective Shares delivered at such percentiles. For example, if Employer were to achieve the 70
percentile TSR, the number of Shares to be delivered would be 180% of the Target Award.

(iii)  EPS Valuation Rule. Notwithstanding the valuation principles set forth in paragraph 4(b)(ii), if, for the Measurement Period for any award of
PSUs, (x) Employer achieves less than the 50th percentile TSR, and (y) its earnings per share (“EPS”) exceed a hurdle specified by the Compensation
Committee, then the number of Shares to be delivered under the award will equal the arithmetic average of the Target Award and the number of Shares that
would be received under the award pursuant to the Schedule, rounded up to the nearest whole Share. The EPS hurdle in respect of an award of PSUs will
be established and approved by the Compensation Committee no later than September 30 of the year in which occurs the Grant Date of such PSUs, will
consider, in a manner determined by the Compensation Committee, earnings throughout the Measurement Period and not just the earnings for a limited part
of the Measurement Period (considering, for example and not by way of limitation, trends in the earnings over the Measurement Period, or cumulative
earnings during the Measurement Period, rather than, for example, considering only the earnings for a single year of the Measurement Period) and will be
consistent with the strategic plan for the Company approved by the Board. You will have the opportunity to make suggestions to the Compensation
Committee regarding the establishment of the EPS hurdle, but the Compensation Committee will have final power and authority concerning the
establishment of the hurdle.
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(iv)  Vesting; Delivery; Registration. Shares delivered in settlement of a PSU award will be delivered as follows:
 

 
a. If Employer achieves at least the 50  percentile TSR, Shares will be delivered no later than four (4) weeks following the

Determination Date for such award; and
 

 

b. If employer does not achieve at least the 50  percentile TSR, (I) a number of shares determined pursuant to the Schedule will be
delivered no later than four (4) weeks following the Determination Date and (II) any incremental Shares to which you are entitled by
virtue of paragraph 4(b)(iii) will be delivered on the second business day following the delivery of Employer’s audited financial
statements in respect of the last year of the applicable Measurement Period (so that it can be determined whether or not Employer
attained the EPS hurdle in respect of such award).

All Shares delivered in settlement of PSUs shall be fully vested and nonforfeitable and registered on Form S-8 or a different registration statement of similar
import. You may elect to satisfy required tax withholding in respect of the delivery of such Shares by having Employer withhold from such delivery Shares
having a fair market value equal to the amount of such required withholding.

(v)  Definitions. For purposes of this paragraph 4(b), the following definitions shall apply:
 

 

a. The “Measurement Period” for your awards of PSUs will be determined as follows: (I) the Measurement Period for your award of
PSUs for 2007 began on September 9, 2006 and ended on December 31, 2009; (II) the Measurement Period for your award of PSUs
for 2008 began on September 9, 2006 and will end on December 31, 2010; and (III) the Measurement Period for your award of PSUs
for 2009 and subsequent years will begin on the Grant Date for the Award (which shall always be January 1) and end on the
December 31 immediately prior to the third anniversary of the Grant Date; provided, however, that if your employment with Employer
terminates in a Qualifying Termination, the Measurement Period for any outstanding PSU award whose Determination Date has not
yet occurred shall be as follows: (X) for your 2007 and 2008 PSU awards, the period beginning on September 9, 2006 and ending on
the effective date of your Qualifying Termination and (Y) for each of your other PSU awards, the period beginning on the date that is
three years before
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the effective date of your Qualifying Termination and ending on the effective date of your Qualifying Termination.

By way of illustration: If you were to experience a Qualifying Termination on March 1, 2011, you would have outstanding PSU
awards for 2009, 2010 and 2011 (your awards for 2007 and 2008 would previously have been valued and settled), and the
Measurement Period for each such award would be the period from March 1, 2008 through March 1, 2011.

 

 

b. Your employment with Employer will be considered to have terminated in a “Qualifying Termination” if (I) your employment is
terminated by Employer without Cause (as defined in, and subject to the terms and conditions of, paragraph 10(a)); (II) you resign
from employment for Good Reason (as defined in, and subject to the terms and conditions of, paragraph 10(b)); (III) your employment
terminates by reason of your death or your incapacity as provided in paragraph 9; or (IV) your employment terminates for any reason
on the last day of the Employment Term.

 

 

c. “Reference Group” means, with respect to any award of PSUs, all companies whose common stock is included in the S&P 500 at the
start of the Measurement Period for that award (other than (I) companies that cease to be included in the S&P 500 during the
Measurement Period solely due to merger, acquisition, liquidation or similar events changing the identity and nature of the company
and (II) companies that cease to be included in the S&P 500 other than on account of events described in the preceding clause (I) and
which also cease to have common stock publicly traded on an exchange or on a recognized market system or the over-the-counter
market).

 

 

d. “TSR” means for the Shares and for the common stock of each company in the Reference Group, the percentage change in value
(positive or negative) over the relevant Measurement Period as measured by dividing (i) the sum of (A) each company’s cumulative
value of dividends and other distributions in respect of its common stock for the Measurement Period, assuming dividend
reinvestment, and (B) the difference (positive or negative) between each company’s common stock price on the first and last day of the
Measurement Period (calculated on the basis of the
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average closing prices over the 20-day trading period immediately prior to the first day of the Measurement Period (except that in the
case of the PSU awards for 2007 and 2008, the closing price on September 9, 2006, rather than a 20-day average, will be used) and the
average closing prices over the 20-day trading period immediately prior to the relevant Determination Date, in each case, as reported
by Bloomberg L.P. (or such other reporting service that the Compensation Committee may designate from time to time)); by (ii) the
common stock price on the first day of the Measurement Period, calculated on the basis described above. Appropriate and equitable
adjustments will be made to account for stock splits and reverse stock splits. TSR will be determined by the Compensation Committee
in a manner consistent with this definition. For purposes of computing TSR, if a company has more than one class of common stock
outstanding then only the class that is included in the S&P 500 shall be taken into account, and if there is more than one such class the
company’s TSR shall be computed using the aggregate values of and distributions on all such classes.

(vi)  Other Terms and Conditions. Employer’s PSU program is currently under development and review by the Compensation Committee and may be
made available to other senior executives of the Company. You acknowledge and agree that the program as definitively approved by the Compensation
Committee may include terms and conditions in addition to those set forth in this Agreement, and that such terms and conditions will apply to PSUs
awarded to you pursuant to this Agreement. You will participate in the discussions leading to finalization of the program, and the definitive terms and
conditions approved by the Compensation Committee will be no less favorable to you than to the Company’s other senior executives. Notwithstanding the
above, no such new terms and conditions will apply to you, without your written consent, to the extent they would make the payout in respect of your PSUs
more difficult to attain or reduce the amount attainable thereof pursuant to the terms of this paragraph 4(b).

(c)  Performance-Based Restricted Stock Units.

(i)  On the Announcement Date, you shall receive an award of restricted stock units subject to special vesting conditions (the “PRSUs”) under the
LTMIP, provided that you are employed by Employer on the Announcement Date. The PRSUs represent a right to receive a number of Shares over four
performance periods (the “Performance Periods”) on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, with a target number of 250,000 Shares to be
delivered in respect of each Performance Period (the “Target PRSU Award”).
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The Performance Periods shall be each of the first four full fiscal years starting after the Announcement Date.

(ii)  For each Performance Period, a single “Current Achievement Percentage” shall be calculated as follows: (x) 75% of the Current Achievement
Percentage shall be calculated by comparing the achievement of Operating Income (as defined in the Senior Executive STIP) for the current Performance
Period to the Operating Income goals established for the current Performance Period under the Senior Executive STIP; (y) 25% of the Current
Achievement Percentage shall be calculated by comparing the achievement of Free Cash Flow (as defined in the Senior Executive STIP) for the current
Performance Period to the Free Cash Flow goals for the current Performance Period under the Senior Executive STIP; and (z) the method of determining
this single percentage shall correspond to the method used under the Senior Executive STIP as of the Amendment Date to determine STIP payout
percentages.

(iii)  For each Performance Period, a single “Cumulative Achievement Percentage” shall be calculated and shall be the average of the Current
Achievement Percentage for the current and any prior Performance Periods. The Cumulative Achievement Percentage shall be used to calculate the number
of Shares that you will receive, in accordance with the following schedule:

 
 

Schedule
 

 
•    If the Cumulative Achievement Percentage is 75%, the number of Shares to be delivered under the
award will be 75% of the Target PRSU Award
 

 
•    If the Cumulative Achievement Percentage is 100%, the number of Shares to be delivered under the
award will be 100% of the Target PRSU Award
 

 
•    If the Cumulative Achievement Percentage is 125% or more, the number of Shares to be delivered
under the award will be 125% of the Target PRSU Award
 

For achievement at an intermediate point between 75% and 100%, and between 100% and 125%, the number of Shares to be delivered will be interpolated
on a straight-line basis between the respective numbers of shares to be delivered at such percentages. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the minimum number
of Shares that shall be delivered to you in respect of any Performance Period shall be 75% of the Target PRSU Award, and the maximum number of Shares
that may be
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delivered to you in respect of any Performance Period shall be 125% of the Target PRSU Awards.

(iv)  Provided that you are employed on the last day of the applicable Performance Period, the Compensation Committee shall certify and deliver to
you the number of Shares determined pursuant to paragraph 3(c)(iii) of this Agreement promptly after the end of the Performance Period but in no event
later than the last day of the second month following the end of such Performance Period. The PRSUs may be subject to accelerated vesting and delivery
pursuant to Sections 9, 10 and 11 of this Agreement without regard to the foregoing.

(v)  Shares received upon settlement of the PRSUs shall be fully vested and nonforfeitable and registered on Form S-8 or a different registration
statement of similar import. You may elect to satisfy required tax withholding in respect of the delivery of such Shares by having Employer withhold from
such delivery Shares having a fair market value equal to the amount of such required withholding. An amount equal to any dividends or other distributions
paid in respect of Shares while you hold unvested PRSUs shall be credited to an account on Employer’s books as if each PRSU were a Share. Such
dividend or distribution equivalents will be paid to you when and if the PRSUs to which they relate vest.

(d)    No Awards Following Termination of Employment. For the avoidance of doubt, it is noted that you will not be entitled to any annual awards of
stock options or of PSUs following termination of your employment with Employer for any reason other than any award that was required to be issued on or prior
to such date but was not.

5.    Sign-On Consideration: Matching RSUs. You invested at least Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) to purchase Shares within the three month
period following the Start Date. For each Share that you purchased within the time period described in the preceding sentence (the “Purchased Shares”), up to a
maximum investment by you of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000), Employer awarded you two matching stock units (the “Matching RSUs”) under the LTMIP.
Each Matching RSU corresponds to one Share. Matching RSUs vest in four equal annual installments on the first four anniversaries of September 11, 2006 (each
such anniversary being a “Matching RSU Vesting Date”) and will be settled by delivery of Shares on or as soon as administratively practicable following the
applicable Matching RSU Vesting Date. Such delivered Shares shall be fully vested and nonforfeitable and registered on Form S-8 or a different registration
statement of similar import. You may elect to satisfy required tax withholding in respect of the delivery of such Shares by having Employer withhold from such
delivery Shares having a fair market value equal to the amount of such required withholding. Subject to accelerated vesting as provided in paragraphs 9, 10(d)
and 11, vesting of Matching RSUs is contingent on (i) your remaining in employment through the applicable Matching RSU Vesting Date and (ii) your having
retained ownership of the corresponding Purchased Shares from the date of purchase through the applicable Matching RSU Vesting Date. If prior to any Matching
RSU Vesting Date (subject to
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accelerated vesting as provided in paragraphs 9, 10(d) and 11) you sell any Purchased Shares, two unvested Matching RSUs will be forfeited for each Purchased
Share sold, with Matching RSUs with the latest Matching RSU Vesting Date being forfeited first. An amount equal to any dividends or other distributions paid in
respect of Shares while you hold unvested Matching RSUs shall be credited to an account on Employer’s books as if each Matching RSU were a Share. Such
dividend or distribution equivalents will be paid to you when and if the Matching RSUs to which they relate vest.

6.    Benefits.

(a)  You shall be entitled to participate in such life and medical insurance, pension and other employee benefit plans as the Company may have or
establish from time to time and in which other Company executives with corporate-wide responsibilities are eligible to participate. The foregoing, however, shall
not be construed to require Employer or any of its subsidiaries to establish any such plans or to prevent the modification or termination of such plans once
established, and no such action or failure thereof shall affect this Agreement; provided that no such modification or termination shall be applicable to you unless
also equally applicable to all other Company executives with corporate-wide responsibilities. All benefits you may be entitled to as an employee of Employer
shall be based upon your Salary and not upon any bonus compensation due, payable or paid to you hereunder, except where the benefit plan expressly provides
otherwise. You shall be entitled to four (4) weeks paid vacation during each calendar year during the Employment Term.

(b)  Employer shall provide you with no less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) of life insurance during the Employment Term at Employer’s
cost, the beneficiary or beneficiaries of which shall be designated by you or the assignee of such policy in accordance with the following sentence. You shall have
the right to assign the policy for such life insurance to your spouse and/or issue or to a trust or trusts primarily for the benefit of your spouse or issue.

(c)  Unless your employment is terminated pursuant to paragraph 10(a) of this Agreement, Employer shall provide you the following benefits
following any termination of employment:

(i)  Employer shall provide you and your spouse, at the Company’s sole cost, all medical, dental and hospitalization benefit plans or programs that
are from time to time made available to the highest paid group of senior executives of the Company other than to Sumner M. Redstone as Employer’s
Executive Chairman and Founder for two (2) years following the Termination Date; provided that, if your continued participation in any employee plan or
program as provided in this paragraph 6(c) would conflict with any law or regulation, or would result in any adverse tax consequences for you, your
spouse, the Company or other participants in such plan or program, you and/or your spouse shall be provided with the economic equivalent of the benefits
provided under the plan or program in which you are, and/or your spouse is, unable to participate. In the case of any welfare benefit plan, the economic
equivalent of any benefit foregone
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(x) shall be deemed to be the lowest cost that you and/or your spouse would incur in obtaining such benefit yourself and/or herself on an individual basis
(but including dependent coverage, as applicable) and (y) shall be provided on a “tax grossed-up basis” to the extent the economic equivalent is taxable to
you and/or your spouse but the provision of the benefit to you while an employee was not taxable; and

(ii)  for the longer of thirty-six (36) months following the Termination Date or until the end of the Employment Term, (a) at your request, suitable and
appropriate office facilities in a building selected by Employer on Employer’s property, which is located in the Borough of Manhattan in New York City
and (b) a personal secretary (who may be your choice of your personal secretary who provided services to you during the Employment Term or a
replacement designated by you and whose principal place of employment will be determined by you), to be compensated at the same compensation and
benefits cost to Employer in effect immediately prior to the Termination Date, subject to increase at the same rate and with the same frequency as given to
similarly situated secretaries at Employer.

7.    Business Expenses, Perquisites. During the Employment Term, you shall be reimbursed for such reasonable travel and other expenses incurred
in the performance of your duties hereunder on a basis no less favorable than that provided by Employer to any of its senior executives other than to Sumner M.
Redstone as Employer’s Executive Chairman and Founder. Employer shall pay the fees and expenses of your counsel and other fees and expenses which you
incurred in negotiating the terms of this amendment and restatement of the Original Employment Agreement. While you are actively employed during the
Employment Term, you shall be entitled to the use of the Company’s private plane (or equivalent charter aircraft) to travel on Company business (accompanied by
your spouse, at your option and, unless your spouse’s presence is required by the Company, at your cost, provided that such cost shall be on a basis consistent
with that presently in effect on the Amendment Date or as otherwise required by law). You also shall be entitled to other perquisites (the “Perquisites”) (including
use of a car service, office and secretarial services) in accordance with Employer policy on a basis no less favorable than that provided by Employer to any of its
senior executives other than to Sumner M. Redstone as Employer’s Executive Chairman and Founder.

8.    Exclusive Employment, Etc.

(a)  Non-Competition. You agree that your employment hereunder is on an exclusive basis, and that during the period (the “Non-Compete Period”)
beginning on the Start Date and ending on the first anniversary of the termination of your employment for any reason other than termination of your employment
upon expiration of the Employment Term (in which case the Non-Compete Period will end on the last day of the Employment Term), other than as set forth in
paragraph 2(d), you will not engage in any other business activity which is in conflict with your duties and obligations (including your commitment of time)
hereunder. You agree that during the Non-Compete Period you shall not, directly or indirectly, engage in or participate as an owner,
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partner, holder or beneficiary of stock, stock options or other equity interest, officer, employee, director, manager, partner or agent of, or consultant for, any
company or business competing with the Company; provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent you from participating in any investment activities
specifically allowed under paragraph 2(d); further provided, however, that following termination of your employment with Employer you may be actively
involved in the management of any company listed on Schedule A.

(b)  No Solicitation of Employees. You agree that, during the period of your employment hereunder and for the period provided below after the
termination of your employment for any reason, you will not employ any Restricted Employee (as defined below), or in any way induce or attempt to induce any
Restricted Employee to leave the employment of Employer or any of its affiliates. You agree that you will not take the actions described in the preceding sentence
(i) with respect to any Restricted Employee at the level of Vice President or above for one (1) year after the termination of your employment for any reason, and
(ii) with respect to any Restricted Employee at the level of director for six (6) months after the termination of your employment for any reason. “Restricted
Employee” refers to any person employed by Employer or any of its affiliates or predecessors or previously employed by Employer or any of its affiliates or
predecessors unless at such time such person has not been employed by Employer and/or any of its affiliates or predecessors for at least six (6) months.

(c)  Confidential Information. You agree that, during the Employment Term or at any time thereafter, you will not use for your own purposes, or
disclose to or for the benefit of any third party, any information relating to Employer, Employer’s clients or other parties with which Employer has a relationship,
or that may provide Employer with a competitive advantage (“Confidential Information”) (except as may be required by law or in the performance of your
duties hereunder consistent with the Company’s policies) and you will comply with any and all confidentiality obligations of the Company to a third party which
you know or should know about, whether under agreement or otherwise. Confidential Information shall include, without limitation, trade secrets; inventions
(whether or not patentable); technology and business processes; business, product or marketing plans; sales and other forecasts; financial information; client lists
or other intellectual property; information relating to compensation and benefits; public information that becomes proprietary as a result of Employer’s
compilation of that information for use in its business; documents (including any electronic record, videotapes or audiotapes); and oral communications
incorporating Confidential Information. Notwithstanding the foregoing, confidential information shall be deemed not to include information which (i) is or
becomes generally available to the public other than as a result of a disclosure by you in violation of this Agreement or by any other person who directly or
indirectly receives such information from you or at your direction in violation of this Agreement, or (ii) is or becomes available to you on a non-confidential basis
from a source which is entitled to disclose it to you.

(d)  Employer Ownership. The results and proceeds of your services to the Company, whether or not created during the Employment Term,
including, without limitation, any works of authorship resulting from your services and any works in
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progress resulting from such services, shall be works-made-for-hire and Employer shall be deemed the sole owner throughout the universe of any and all rights of
every nature in such works, with the right to use, license or dispose of the works in perpetuity in any manner Employer determines in its sole discretion without
any further payment to you, whether such rights and means of use are now known or hereafter defined or discovered. If, for any reason, any of the results and
proceeds of your services to the Company are not legally deemed a work-made-for-hire and/or there are any rights in such results and proceeds which do not
accrue to Employer under this paragraph 8(d) then you hereby irrevocably assign any and all of your right, title and interest thereto, including, without limitation,
any and all copyrights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks and/or other rights of every nature in the work, and Employer shall have the sole right to use, license or
dispose of the work in perpetuity throughout the universe in any manner Employer determines in its sole discretion without any further payment to you, whether
such rights and means of use are now known or hereafter defined or discovered. Upon request by Employer, whether or not during the Employment Term, you
shall do any and all things which Employer may deem useful or desirable to establish or document Employer’s rights in the results and proceeds of your services
to the Company, including, without limitation, the execution of appropriate copyright, trademark and/or patent applications, assignments or similar documents.
You hereby irrevocably designate the General Counsel, Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of Employer as your attorney-in-fact with the power to take such
action and execute such documents on your behalf. To the extent you have any rights in such results and proceeds that cannot be assigned as described above, you
unconditionally and irrevocably waive the enforcement of such rights. This paragraph 8(d) is subject to, and does not limit, restrict, or constitute any waiver by
Employer of any rights of ownership to which Employer may be entitled by operation of law by virtue of Employer or any of its affiliates or predecessors being
your employer.

(e)  Litigation. You agree that, during the period of your employment hereunder, for one (1) year thereafter and, if longer, during the pendancy of any
litigation or other proceeding, (i) you shall not communicate with anyone (other than your attorneys and tax advisors and except to the extent required by law or
necessary in the performance of your duties hereunder) with respect to the facts or subject matter of any pending or potential litigation, or regulatory or
administrative proceeding involving Employer or any of its affiliates or predecessors, other than any litigation or other proceeding in which you are a party-in-
opposition, without giving prior notice to Employer or Employer’s counsel, and (ii) in the event that any other party attempts to obtain information or documents
from you with respect to matters possibly related to such litigation or other proceeding, you shall promptly so notify Employer’s counsel unless you are prohibited
from doing so under applicable law. You agree to cooperate, in a reasonable and appropriate manner, with Employer and its attorneys, both during and after the
termination of your employment, in connection with any litigation or other proceeding arising out of or relating to matters in which you were involved prior to the
termination of your employment to the extent Employer pays all reasonable expenses you incur in connection with such cooperation (including, without
limitation, the fees and expenses of your counsel and providing use of the Company’s private plane (or equivalent charter aircraft) for all travel required in
connection with such cooperation at
 

16



the Company’s expense) and to the extent such cooperation does not unreasonably interfere with your personal or professional schedule.

(f)  No Right to Write Books, Articles, Etc. During the period of your employment hereunder and for two (2) years thereafter but not beyond the end
of the Employment Term, except in the course of the performance of your duties and responsibilities or otherwise as authorized by the Board, you shall not
prepare or assist any person or entity in the preparation of any books, articles, radio broadcasts, electronic communications, television or motion picture
productions or other creations, concerning Employer or any of its affiliates or predecessors or any of their officers, directors, agents, employees, suppliers or
customers.

(g)  Return of Property. All documents, data, recordings, or other property, whether tangible or intangible, including all information stored in
electronic form, obtained or prepared by or for you and utilized by you in the course of your employment with Employer shall remain the exclusive property of
Employer and shall remain in Employer’s exclusive possession at the conclusion of your employment. In the event of the termination of your employment for any
reason, Employer reserves the right, to the extent permitted by law and in addition to any other remedy Employer may have, to deduct from any monies otherwise
payable to you the following: (i) all amounts you may owe, pursuant to a legally enforceable agreement, to Employer or any of its affiliates or predecessors at the
time of or subsequent to the termination of your employment with Employer; and (ii) the value of the Employer property which you retain in your possession
after the termination of your employment with Employer following Employer’s written request for same and your failure to return same. In the event that the law
of any state or other jurisdiction requires the consent of any employee for such deductions, this Agreement shall serve as such consent.

(h)  Non-Disparagement. You and, to the extent set forth in the next sentence, Employer agree that each party shall not, during the period of your
employment hereunder and for one (1) year thereafter, criticize, ridicule or make any statement which disparages or is derogatory of the other party in any non-
public communication with any customer, client or member of the investment community or media or in any public communication. Employer’s obligations
under the preceding sentence shall be limited to communications by its senior corporate executives having the rank of Senior Vice President or above (“Specified
Executives”) and, with respect to communications that ridicule, disparage or are derogatory, members of the Board, and it is agreed and understood that any such
communication by any Specified Executive or any member of the Board (or by any executive at the behest of a Specified Executive or member of the Board)
shall be deemed to be a breach of this paragraph 8(h) by Employer. Notwithstanding the foregoing, (i) neither you nor Employer shall be prohibited from making
statements in response to statements by the other party that criticize or ridicule or are disparaging or derogatory provided that the responsive statements do not
criticize or ridicule and are not disparaging or derogatory and (ii) nothing in this Section 8(h) shall prevent you, the Specified Executives or members of the
Board from making any statement in good faith in connection with a proceeding to resolve a dispute in accordance with paragraph 20.
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(i)  Injunctive Relief, Etc. Employer has entered into this Agreement in order to obtain the benefit of your unique skills, talent and experience. You
acknowledge and agree that any violation of paragraphs 8(a) through 8(h) will result in irreparable damage to Employer, and, accordingly, Employer may obtain
injunctive and other equitable relief for any breach or threatened breach of such paragraphs, in addition to any other remedies available to Employer. Employer
acknowledges and agrees that any violation of paragraph 8(h) will result in irreparable damage to you, and, accordingly, you may obtain injunctive and other
equitable relief for any breach or threatened breach of such paragraph, in addition to any other remedies available to you. You and Employer agree that the
restrictions and remedies contained in paragraphs 8(a) through 8(h) are reasonable and that it is your intention and the intention of Employer that such restrictions
and remedies shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permissible by law. If it shall be found by a court of competent jurisdiction that any such restriction or
remedy is unenforceable but would be enforceable if some part thereof were deleted or the period or area of application reduced, then such restriction or remedy
shall apply with such modification as shall be necessary to make it enforceable.

(j)  Survival. Your obligations under paragraphs 8(a) through 8(h) and Employer’s obligations under paragraph 8(h) shall remain in full force and
effect for the entire period provided therein (and only for such period) notwithstanding the termination of your employment pursuant to paragraph 10 hereof or
otherwise or the expiration of the Employment Term.

9.    Incapacity. In the event you become totally medically disabled and you will not be able to substantially perform your duties for at least six
(6) consecutive months or a total of 180 days during any 270 day period, the Board, at any time after such disability has continued for 60 consecutive days, may
determine that Employer requires such duties and responsibilities be performed by another executive. In the event that you become “disabled” within the meaning
of such term under Employer’s Short-Term Disability (STD) and its Long-Term Disability (LTD) program, you will first receive benefits under the STD program
for the first 26 weeks of consecutive absence, which will be equal to your Salary, and the amount of such benefits will offset any Salary that otherwise would be
paid to you pursuant to this Agreement. Thereafter, you will be eligible to receive benefits under the LTD program in accordance with its terms. For purposes of
this Agreement, you will be considered to have experienced a termination of employment with Employer as of the date you first become eligible to receive
benefits under the LTD program, and until that time you shall be treated for all purposes of this Agreement as an active employee of Employer. Upon receipt of
benefits under the LTD program, you will also be entitled to receive the following:

(i)  Employer will pay your Accrued Compensation and Benefits (as defined below in paragraph 10(d)(i));

(ii)  Employer will pay you a prorated Bonus for the year of your termination of employment based on your Target Bonus and the number of calendar
days of such year elapsed through the date of your termination of employment;
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(iii)  all of your outstanding unvested Employer stock options will vest, and all such options and all of your outstanding options that have previously
vested will remain exercisable until the applicable date set forth in paragraph 4(a)(v);

(iv)  the number of Shares to which you are entitled in respect of your outstanding awards of PSUs will be determined as provided in paragraph 4(b)
for Qualifying Terminations, and all Shares delivered upon settlement of PSUs will be considered vested;

(v)  all of your unvested Target PRSU Awards and Matching RSUs will vest and be settled as promptly as administratively practicable after your
termination date; and

(vi)  Employer will continue to provide you with life insurance coverage as set forth in paragraph 6(b) until the end of the Employment Term or, if
earlier, the date on which you become eligible for at least as much insurance coverage from a third party employer at the employer’s expense; provided,
however, that Employer may decrease the amount of life insurance coverage it provides you so along as the amount of such coverage that it continues to
provide, and the amount of such coverage provided to you from a third party employer at the employer’s expense, aggregates at least the amount set forth
in paragraph 6(b).

10.  Termination.

(a)  Termination for Cause; Resignation without Good Reason. Employer may, at its option, terminate your employment for Cause (as defined
below). You may, at your option, terminate your employment without Good Reason (as defined below). For purposes of this Agreement, termination of your
employment for “Cause” shall mean termination of your employment due to any of the following:

(i)  your engaging or participating in intentional acts of material fraud against the Company;

(ii)  your willful misfeasance having a material adverse effect on the Company (except in the event of your incapacity as set forth in paragraph 9);

(iii)  your substantial and continual refusal to perform your duties, responsibilities or obligations provided for in this Agreement (provided that such
duties, responsibilities or obligations are not inconsistent with your position as President and Chief Executive Officer and are otherwise lawful);

(iv)  your conviction of a felony or entering a plea of nolo contendere to a felony charge;

(v)  your willful violation of any policy of the Company that is generally applicable to all employees or all officers of the Company including, but not
limited to, policies concerning insider trading or sexual harassment, or the
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Company’s code of conduct, that you knew or reasonably should have known could reasonably be expected to result in a material adverse effect on the
Company;

(vi)  your willful unauthorized disclosure of a trade secret or other confidential material information of the Company, that you knew or reasonably
should have known could reasonably be expected to result in a material adverse effect on the Company;

(vii)  your willful failure to cooperate fully with a bona fide Company internal investigation or an investigation of the Company by regulatory or law
enforcement authorities whether or not related to your employment with the Company (an “Investigation”), after being instructed by the Board to
cooperate;

(viii)  your willful destruction of or knowing and intentional failure to preserve documents or other material known by you to be relevant to any
Investigation; or

(ix)  your willful inducement of others to fail to cooperate in any Investigation or to produce documents or other material.

For purposes of the foregoing definition, an act or omission shall be considered “willful” if it done, or omitted to be done, by you with knowledge and intent.
Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Board will give you written notice (a “Cause Notice”), not more than thirty (30) calendar days after the
occurrence of the event constituting Cause comes to the attention of an “executive officer” of Employer (as defined by the rules and regulations of the Securities
Exchange Commission for purposes of the Exchange Act), prior to terminating your employment for Cause. A Cause Notice will set forth in reasonable detail the
circumstances constituting Cause and, if applicable, the conduct required to cure the same. Except for actions, malfeasance or circumstances which by their nature
cannot be cured, you shall have thirty (30) calendar days from your receipt of such notice within which to cure. Without prejudice to whether any other action,
malfeasance or circumstance is capable of cure, it shall be a rebuttable presumption that any purported refusal to perform your duties, responsibilities or
obligations as described in clause (iii) above, and any failure to cooperate with an Investigation as described in clause (vii) above, is capable of cure.
Notwithstanding the above, any violation of Company policy or failure to cooperate with an Investigation which is in connection with the exercise of your
constitutional right against self-incrimination shall not be considered an event described in clause (v) or (vii) above. For purposes of this Agreement, no
termination of your employment purportedly for Cause shall be treated as a termination for Cause without your receipt of a Cause Notice, nor shall any
termination of your employment during the 30-day cure period provided for in the preceding sentence, if applicable, or after your satisfactory cure of the breach,
malfeasance or circumstances that the Company asserted as constituting Cause, be considered a termination for Cause for such stated reasons. The date of a
termination of your employment for Cause shall be the date after the cure period provided for above, if any, expires without your having cured the actions,
malfeasance or circumstances
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constituting Cause to the reasonable satisfaction of the Board (or, if no cure period is applicable, the date of termination specified in the written notice given to
you by the Board).

(b)  Good Reason Termination. Upon written notice to Employer, you may resign from your employment hereunder for “Good Reason” at any time
during the Employment Term not more than thirty (30) calendar days after you become aware of the occurrence of the event constituting Good Reason. Such
notice shall state an effective date no earlier than thirty (30) calendar days after the date it is given, and Employer shall have thirty (30) calendar days from the
giving of such notice within which to cure and within which period you cannot terminate your employment under this Agreement for the stated reasons and, if so
cured, after which you cannot terminate your employment under this Agreement for the stated reasons; provided, however, that this sentence shall not apply with
respect to events which by their nature cannot be cured. “Good Reason” shall mean, without your prior written consent, other than in connection with the
termination of your employment for Cause (as defined above) or incapacity (as set forth in paragraph 9) or as a result of your death:

(i)  (A) the assignment to you of duties substantially inconsistent with your positions, duties or responsibilities as President and Chief Executive
Officer or any change in reporting such that you do not report solely and directly to Sumner M. Redstone in his capacity as Employer’s Executive
Chairman and Founder and the Board (or, if Sumner M. Redstone ceases to hold such position of Employer’s Executive Chairman and Founder, solely to
the Board) or, (B) after the appointment of a non-executive Chairman of Employer other than Sumner M. Redstone or yourself, the occurrence of conduct
by such non-executive Chairman which materially interferes with your ability to perform your CEO duties effectively and which is inconsistent with the
role of a member of the Board; provided, however, that you shall provide written notice to the Chair of the Compensation Committee not later than the date
you provide written notice of termination, explaining the rationale for why such conduct adversely affects your ability to perform your CEO duties
effectively; and, provided, further, that Employer shall be deemed to have satisfactorily cured such event if (i) the Board takes reasonable steps to cause the
cessation of the interfering conduct and takes reasonable steps to prevent the further occurrence thereof, including by directing the non-executive Chairman
to cease and desist from such interfering conduct, and, (ii) if such direction by the Board does not in fact cause such conduct to cease, subject to written
notice of the re-occurrence of such conduct in accordance with the procedures set forth in this paragraph 10(b), the Board removes the director from the
non-executive Chairman position within sixty (60) calendar days from the giving of such notice;

(ii)  your removal from or any failure to re-elect you as Chief Executive Officer of Employer;
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(iii)  your removal from or failure to be elected or reelected to the Board at any annual meeting of shareholders of the Company at which your term
as director is scheduled to expire;

(iv)  a reduction in your Salary, Target Bonus or other compensation levels as the same may be increased from time to time during the Employment
Term;

(v)  Employer’s requiring you to be based anywhere other than the New York metropolitan area, except for required travel on the Company’s
business; or

(vi)  any other breach by Employer of its obligations hereunder.

(c)  Termination Without Cause. Employer may terminate your employment hereunder without Cause at any time during the Employment Term by
written notice to you.

(d)  Termination Payments, Etc.

(i)  Termination for Cause or Resignation without Good Reason. In the event that Employer terminates your employment for Cause, or if you resign
your employment without Good Reason, Employer shall promptly pay and provide you with Accrued Compensation and Benefits. For purposes of this
Agreement, “Accrued Compensation and Benefits” shall consist of: (w) reimbursement of any unpaid business expenses to which your are entitled to
reimbursement pursuant to paragraph 7 that were incurred prior to the effective date of your termination or resignation (the “Termination Date”); (x) your
Salary through the Termination Date determined in accordance with paragraph 10(a) or 10(b), as applicable; (y) any earned but unpaid Bonus with respect
to any completed year; and (z) all other vested compensation benefits to which you are entitled as of the Termination Date under the terms and conditions
applicable to such compensation and benefits which, for purposes of clarity and without limitation, shall include the benefits listed in paragraph 6(c) if your
employment is terminated for any reason other than pursuant to paragraph 10(a).

(ii)  Termination without Cause or Resignation with Good Reason. In the event that Employer terminates your employment without Cause, or if your
resign your employment for Good Reason, you shall be entitled to receive the following:

 
 a. Employer will pay and provide your Accrued Compensation and Benefits;
 

 
b. Employer will pay you a pro rated Bonus for the fiscal year of your termination of employment based on your Target Bonus and the

number of calendar days of such year elapsed through the Termination Date, such amount, before
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the daily pro ration, to be multiplied by the performance multiplier approved by the Compensation Committee in respect of Company
financial and quantitative goals for such year under the Senior Executive STIP (with the method for determining such performance
multiplier to correspond to the method used under the Senior Executive STIP as of the Amendment Date to adjust target STIP payout
amounts based on Company performance), with such pro rated Bonus to be paid in accordance with paragraph 3(b)(iv) of this
Agreement;

 
 c. Employer will pay you a severance payment (the “Severance Payment”) equal in amount to the sum of:
 

 
i three (3) times your Salary in effect at the time of termination (or, if your Salary has been reduced in violation of this

Agreement, your highest Salary during the Employment Term); and
 

 

ii three (3) times the higher of (X) the average of the annual cash Bonuses payable to you (whether or not actually paid) with
respect to the last three completed fiscal years prior to the Termination Date (with any Bonus payable to you in respect of the
shortened fiscal year January 1 – September 30, 2010, once completed, to be included in such average only on an annualized
basis) and (Y) the Target Bonus at the Termination Date (or, if your Target Bonus has been reduced in violation of this
Agreement, your highest Target Bonus during the Employment Term) (the “Applicable Bonus Amount”)

(such sum being the “Severance Amount”); provided, however, that if fewer than 36 months remain in the Employment Term at the
Termination Date, the amount of the Severance Payment will equal the Severance Amount multiplied by a fraction the numerator of
which is the number of months (including partial months) remaining in the Employment Term (but in no event will the numerator be
less than 12) and the denominator of which is 36.

 

 
d. all of your outstanding unvested Employer stock options will vest, and all such options and all of your outstanding Employer stock

options that have previously vested will remain exercisable until the applicable date set forth in paragraph 4(a)(v);
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e. the number of Shares to which you are entitled in respect of your outstanding awards of PSUs will be determined as provided in

paragraph 4(b) for Qualifying Terminations, and all Shares delivered upon settlement of PSUs will be considered vested;
 

 
f. all of your unvested Target PRSU Awards and Matching RSUs will vest and be settled as promptly as administratively practicable

after your Termination Date; and
 

 

g. Employer will continue to provide you with life insurance coverage as set forth in paragraph 6(b) until the end of the Employment
Term or, if earlier, the date on which you become eligible for at least as much insurance coverage from a third party employer at the
employer’s expense; provided, however, that Employer may decrease the amount of life insurance coverage it provides you so along as
the amount of such coverage that it continues to provide, and the amount of such coverage provided to you from a third party
employer at the employer’s expense, aggregates at least the amount set forth in paragraph 6(b).

(iii)  Timing of Payments and Settlement. The cash portion of your Accrued Compensation and Benefits and 80% of the Severance Payment will be
paid in a lump sum within five (5) days after the Termination Date, and the remaining 20% of the Severance Payment will be paid in accordance with the
Company’s regular payroll practices over the number of months (up to 36) on which the Severance Payment was calculated, beginning with the first payroll
period following the Termination Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, your entitlement to any portion of the Severance Payment that has not yet been
made will cease if you materially breach either the non-compete covenant set forth in paragraph 8(a) (the “Non-Compete Covenant”) or the no-solicitation
covenant set forth in paragraph 8(b), after notice to you of such breach by Employer and your failure to cure such breach within thirty (30) days following
your receipt of such notice, assuming such breach is capable of cure. You may request from Employer at any time its view on whether a proposed activity
or investment by you will breach the Non-Compete Covenant by giving Employer written notice of the details of such activity or investment, and Employer
will respond to your inquiry within five (5) business days of its receipt of such notice. Employer’s view as conveyed to you that the proposed activity or
investment will not breach the Non-Compete Covenant shall be binding on it to the extent that the activity or investment does not exceed what was
described in the notice. Your giving notice shall not be deemed an admission by you that the proposed activity or investment would violate the Non-
Compete Covenant. Employer’s failure to respond with its view within five business days of its receipt of notice shall not constitute or be construed as an
acknowledgment by Employer that the proposed activity or
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investment will not breach the Non-Compete Covenant, but such failure shall create an irrebuttable presumption that any breach arising from such activity
or investment is capable of cure.

(iv)  Full Discharge of Company Obligations; Release. The payments and other benefits provided for in paragraph 10(d)(ii) are in lieu of any
severance or income continuation or protection under any plan Employer or any of its subsidiaries that may now or hereafter exist. The payments and
benefits to be provided pursuant to paragraph 10(d)(ii) shall constitute liquidated damages, and shall be deemed to satisfy and be in full and final settlement
of all obligations of Employer to you under this Agreement. You acknowledge and agree that such amounts are fair and reasonable, and your sole and
exclusive remedy, in lieu of all other remedies at law or in equity, with respect to the termination of your employment hereunder. Employer’s obligation to
make the Severance Payment and provide the other benefits provided for in paragraph 10(d)(ii) other than the Accrued Compensation and Benefits shall be
conditioned on your execution and non-revocation of a release in form and substance substantially identical to that set forth in Schedule B.

(e)  Excise Taxes. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, in the event that it is determined that any payment or benefit provided to you
hereunder, would be subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any interest or penalties with
respect to such excise tax (such excise tax, together with any interest or penalties thereon, is herein referred to as the “Excise Tax”), then Employer shall pay
(either directly to the IRS as tax withholdings or to you as a reimbursement of any amount of taxes, interest and penalties paid by you to the IRS) both the Excise
Tax and an additional cash payment (a “Gross-Up Payment”) in an amount that will place you in the same after-tax economic position that you would have
enjoyed if the payment or benefit had not been subject to the Excise Tax. The determination of whether a Gross-Up Payment is due pursuant to the preceding
sentence, and if so the amount thereof, shall be made by Employer; provided, however, that if you disagree with Employer’s determination, you shall have the
right to require Employer to arrange for a second determination to be made by a nationally recognized law or accounting firm mutually agreeable to you and
Employer (the “Tax Expert”), in which case the determination made by the Tax Expert, rather than by Employer, shall control. The Company will pay the fees
and expenses of the Tax Expert in making the foregoing determinations, unless the calculation of the Gross-Up Payment made by the Tax Expert differs by less
than 10% (plus or minus) from the calculation made by Employer, in which case you will pay such fees and expenses. Employer may, at its expense, consult with
its outside tax counsel and its independent auditors, to the extent it deems appropriate, in making determinations pursuant to this paragraph 10(e). If, upon audit or
other examination by the Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) of your or the Company’s federal income tax return (an “Audit”), the amount of the Excise Tax
determined by the IRS is greater than an amount previously determined by Employer or the Tax Expert, as applicable, then Employer or the Tax Expert, as
applicable, shall recalculate the amount of the Gross-Up Payment and shall be instructed to provide you with detailed support for its calculations. You shall
promptly notify Employer of any IRS assertion during an
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Audit of your federal income tax return that an Excise Tax is due with respect to any payment or benefit, but you shall be under no obligation to defend against
such claim by the IRS unless Employer requests, in writing, that you undertake the defense of such IRS claim at Employer’s sole expense. In such event,
Employer may elect to control the conduct to a final determination through counsel of its own choosing and at its sole expense, of any audit, administrative or
judicial proceeding involving an asserted liability relating to the Excise Tax, and you shall not settle, compromise or concede such asserted Excise Tax and shall
cooperate with Employer in each phase of any contest. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this paragraph 10(e), if it shall be determined by Employer or
the Tax Expert, as applicable, that you are entitled to a Gross-Up Payment, but that the aggregate value for purposes of determining if an Excise Tax is due and, if
so, the amount thereof, of all payments and benefits to be provided to you under this Agreement do not exceed 110% of the greatest amount (the “Reduced
Amount”) that could be paid to you such that your receipt of such payments and benefits would not give rise to any Excise Tax, then no Gross-Up Payment shall
be made to you, and the payments and benefits to be provided to you, in the aggregate, shall be reduced, in a manner to be determined solely by you, to the
Reduced Amount. This paragraph 10(e) shall not apply with respect to a change in control or other event described in Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986, as amended, if such event occurs after 2013, unless either (i) a contract or predecessor contract to effect such event was executed prior to 2014 and/or
(ii) your employment is terminated pursuant to paragraph 10(b) or paragraph 10(c) of this Agreement prior to 2014 in anticipation of such an event.

11.  Death. If you die prior to the termination of your employment under this Agreement, your beneficiary or estate shall be entitled to receive the
following:

(i)   Employer will pay your Accrued Compensation and Benefits up to the date on which the death occurs;

(ii)  Employer will pay a prorated Bonus for the year of your death based on your Target Bonus and the number of calendar days elapsed during the
year through the date of your death;

(iii)  all of your outstanding unvested Employer stock options will vest, and all such options and all of your outstanding options that have previously
vested will remain exercisable until the applicable date set forth in paragraph 4(a)(v);

(iv)  the number of Shares to which you are entitled in respect of your outstanding awards of PSUs will be determined as provided in paragraph 4(b)
for Qualifying Terminations, and all Shares delivered upon settlement of PSUs will be considered vested; and

(v)  all of your unvested Target PRSU Awards and Matching RSUs will vest and be settled as promptly as administratively practicable after your
Termination Date.
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12.  Pension Benefits. You will be credited with your previous service with Employer and its predecessors (including without limitation your service
with the company that was formerly named Employer Inc. and is now known as CBS Corporation (“Former Employer”)) for all purposes under any Company
benefit plan, including without limitation the Employer Pension Plan and the Employer Excess Pension Plan. Pursuant to an Agreement, dated as of September 6,
1999, between you and Former Employer, you have previously been credited with such additional service credit as was necessary to provide you with 20 years of
service credit under any Former Employer benefit plan in which 20 years of service credit would result in (i) any right to an unreduced pension, (ii) eligibility for
any additional form of benefit or (iii) any other material additional benefit, which additional years of imputed service will also be credited under any Company
benefit plan for similar purposes. You will accrue additional service under all Company benefit plans beginning on the Start Date, except that to the extent that
you have been credited with additional service as described in the preceding sentence, you will not be credited with additional service until the sum of your
service with Former Employer and your service with Employer pursuant to this Agreement equals 20 years. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, to the extent that you are entitled to receive benefits under the Former Employer pension plan or excess pension plan, such benefits shall offset any
benefits to which you are entitled under the Employer Pension Plan and the Employer Excess Pension Plan.

13.  No Mitigation. You shall not be required to mitigate the amount of any payment or benefit provided for in this Agreement by seeking other
employment or otherwise, nor shall any reduction be made for any other compensation that you earn from a subsequent employer (including self-employment).

14.  Section 317 and 507 of the Federal Communications Act. You represent that you have not accepted or given nor will you accept or give, directly
or indirectly, any money, services or other valuable consideration from or to anyone other than Employer for the inclusion of any matter as part of any film,
television program or other production produced, distributed and/or developed by Employer and/or any of Employer’s affiliates.

15.  Equal Opportunity Employer; Employer Business Conduct Statement. You acknowledge that Employer is an equal opportunity employer. You
agree that you will comply with Employer policies regarding employment practices and with applicable federal, state and local laws prohibiting discrimination on
the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, age, sex or disability. In addition, you agree that you will comply with the Employer Business Conduct Statement.

16.  Indemnification.

(a)  If you are made a party, are threatened to be made a party to, or otherwise receive any other legal process in, any action, suit or proceeding,
whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (a “Proceeding”), by reason (in whole or in part) of the fact that you are or were a director, officer or
employee of Employer or are or were serving at the request of Employer as a director, officer, member, employee or agent
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of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit plans, whether or not the basis of
such Proceeding is your alleged action in an official capacity while serving as director, officer, member, employee or agent, Employer shall indemnify you and
hold you harmless to the fullest extent permitted or authorized by Employer’s certificate of incorporation and bylaws or, if greater, by the laws of the State of
Delaware, against all cost, expense, liability and loss (including without limitation, attorney’s fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts
paid or to be paid in settlement and any cost and fees incurred in enforcing your rights to indemnification or contribution) reasonably incurred or suffered by you
in connection therewith, and such indemnification shall continue even though you have ceased to be a director, member, employee or agent of Employer or other
entity and shall inure to the benefit of your heirs, executors and administrators. Employer shall advance to you all reasonable costs and expenses that you incur in
connection with a Proceeding within 20 days after its receipt of a written request for such advance. Such request shall include an undertaking by you to repay the
amount of such advance if it shall ultimately be determined that you are not entitled to be indemnified against such costs and expenses.

(b)  Neither the failure of Employer (including its board of directors, independent legal counsel or stockholders) to have made a determination that
indemnification of you is proper because you have met the applicable standard of conduct, nor a determination by Employer (including its board of directors,
independent legal counsel or stockholders) that you have not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall create a presumption or inference that you have not
met the applicable standard of conduct.

(c)  To the extent that Employer maintains officers’ and directors’ liability insurance, you will be covered under such policy subject to the exclusions
and limitations set forth therein.

17.  Notices. All notices required to be given hereunder shall be given in writing, by personal delivery or by mail at the respective addresses of the
parties hereto set forth above, or at such other address as may be designated in writing by either party, and in the case of Employer, to the attention of the General
Counsel of Employer. Any notice given by mail shall be deemed to have been given three days following such mailing. Copies of all notices to you shall be given
to Paul, Weiss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garrison LLP, 1285 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10019-6064, Attention: Robert B. Schumer, Esq. and Robert C.
Fleder, Esq.

18.  Assignment and Successors. This is an Agreement for the performance of personal services by you and may not be assigned by you or Employer
except that Employer may assign this Agreement to any successor in interest to Employer, provided that such assignee assumes all of the obligations of Employer
hereunder. Employer shall require any successor (whether direct or indirect, by purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise) to all or substantially all of its
business and/or assets to expressly assume and agree to perform this Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent that Employer would be required to
perform it if no such succession had
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taken place. As used in this Agreement, “Employer” shall mean Employer as defined above and any successor to its business and/or assets which by reason
hereof assumes and agrees to perform this Agreement by operation of law, or otherwise.

19.  New York Law. This Agreement and all matters or issues collateral thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of New York, without
giving effect to the conflicts of laws principles thereof or to those of any other jurisdiction which, in either case, could cause the application of the laws of any
jurisdiction other than the State of New York.

20.  Disputes. Any disputes between the parties to this Agreement shall be settled by arbitration in New York, New York under the auspices of the
American Arbitration Association, before a panel of three (3) arbitrators, in accordance with the National Rules for the Resolution of Employment Disputes
promulgated by the Association. Each party shall select an arbitrator and the two (2) arbitrators shall select a third and these three arbitrators shall form the panel.
The decision in such arbitration shall be final and conclusive on the parties and judgment upon such decision may be entered into in any court having jurisdiction
thereof. Costs of the arbitration or litigation, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses of both parties, shall be borne by Employer if
you prevail on at least one of the issues that is the subject of the arbitration. If you do not so prevail, you and Employer shall equally share costs of the arbitration
or litigation other than attorneys’ fees, and each of you and Employer shall bear its own attorneys’ fees and expenses. Pending the resolution of any arbitration or
court proceeding, Employer shall continue payment of all amounts due you under this Agreement and all benefits to which you are entitled at the time the dispute
arises. Nothing herein shall prevent Employer or you from seeking equitable relief in court as provided for in paragraph 8(i) or shall prevent either party from
seeking equitable relief in court in aid of arbitration under applicable law.

21.  No Implied Contract. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to impose any obligation on Employer to renew this Agreement or
any portion thereof. The parties intend to be bound only upon execution of a written agreement and no negotiation, exchange of draft or partial performance shall
be deemed to imply an agreement. Neither the continuation of employment nor any other conduct shall be deemed to imply a continuing agreement upon the
expiration of this Agreement.

22.  Entire Understanding; Amendments. This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties hereto relating to the subject matter herein
contained, and can be amended only by a writing signed by both parties hereto. This Agreement supersedes the terms of the Original Employment Agreement and
all prior amendments to the Original Employment Agreement other than the “Section 409A Amendment” (as defined in paragraph 26). For purposes of clarity, the
Section 409A Amendment remains in full force and effect following the execution of this Agreement and is incorporated by reference herein pursuant to
paragraph 26 of this Agreement.

23.  Waivers. Waiver by either you or by Employer of any breach or default by the other party of any of the terms of this Agreement shall not operate
as a
 

29



waiver of any other breach or default, whether similar to or different from the breach or default waived. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be
implied from any course of dealing between the parties hereto or from any failure by either party hereto to assert its or his rights hereunder on any occasion or
series of occasions.

24.  Void Provisions. If any provision of this Agreement, as applied to either party or to any circumstances, shall be adjudged by a court to be void or
unenforceable, the same shall be deemed stricken from this Agreement and shall in no way affect any other provision of this Agreement or the validity or
enforceability of this Agreement.

25.  Deductions and Withholdings, Payment of Deferred Compensation. All amounts payable under this Agreement shall be paid less deductions and
income and payroll tax withholdings as may be required under applicable law and any benefits and perquisites provided to you under this Agreement shall be
taxable to you as may be required under applicable law.

26.  Section 409A. On August 28, 2008, you executed a Form Employment Agreement Amendment, attached hereto as Schedule C, to amend your
Original Employment Agreement to comply with Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and the rules, regulations and guidance thereunder (such section,
“Section 409A”) (such amendment, the “Section 409A Amendment”). The Section 409A Amendment shall continue in full force and effect following the
Amendment Date and is hereby incorporated by reference into and made part of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the first sentence of paragraph 10(d)(iii) of this
Agreement, in the event that you become entitled to the Severance Payment pursuant to paragraph 10(d) of this Agreement as a result of a termination of your
employment before 2012, then, if and to the extent that a portion of such payment scheduled to be paid in a lump sum would represent an impermissible
acceleration of “deferred compensation” under the Original Employment Agreement as determined under Section 409A, such portion shall not be paid in a lump
sum but shall instead be paid in such form and at such time(s) as it would have been paid pursuant to the Original Employment Agreement. Following any delay
of payments or benefits pursuant to the Section 409A Amendment: (i) all such delayed payments will be paid in a single lump sum on the date permitted under
paragraph 10 of the Section 409A Amendment (the “Permissible Payment Date”) plus accrued interest on such delayed payments during the period of such delay
at the Company’s highest borrowing rate in effect on the Termination Date, and (ii) Employer shall reimburse you for the reasonable after-tax cost of any benefits,
contemplated by paragraphs 9 and 10 hereof incurred by you in independently obtaining any benefits delayed pursuant to the Section 409A Amendment during
the period in which such benefits are delayed, with such reimbursement to be paid to you by Employer on the Permissible Payment Date.

27.  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which
together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
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28.  Headings. The descriptive headings contained in this Agreement are included for convenience of reference only and shall not affect in any way
the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. Unless otherwise expressly provided for in this Agreement, the word “including” or any variation thereof means
“including, without limitation” and shall not be construed to limit any general statement that it follows to the specific or similar items or matters immediately
following it.
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If the foregoing correctly sets forth our understanding, please sign, date and return all four (4) copies of this Agreement and return it to the undersigned for
execution on behalf of Employer; after this Agreement has been executed by Employer and a fully executed copy returned to you, it shall constitute a binding
agreement between us.
 

Very truly yours,

VIACOM INC.

/s/ Sumner M. Redstone        
Name:    Sumner M. Redstone
Title:      Executive Chairman and Founder

 
 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED:

/s/    Philippe P. Dauman        
Name:    Philippe P. Dauman
 

Dated:



SCHEDULE A
 

Investments

As of the Amendment Date, you have investments in the following private media or entertainment businesses:

DND Capital Partners LLC, including its investments in:

The Tennis Channel, Inc.
Si TV

This Schedule A shall also be deemed to include any successor by merger, assets sale or similar transaction to any of the businesses listed above.
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SCHEDULE B

Form of Release

GENERAL RELEASE

WHEREAS, Philippe P. Dauman (hereinafter referred to as the “Executive”) and Viacom Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Employer”) are parties to
an Employment Agreement, amended and restated as of April 14, 2010 (the “Employment Agreement”), which provided for the Executive’s employment with
Employer on the terms and conditions specified therein; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to paragraph 10(d) of the Employment Agreement, the Executive has agreed to execute a release of the type and nature set
forth herein as a condition to his entitlement to certain payments and benefits upon his termination of employment with Employer; and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual promises herein contained and for other good and valuable consideration received
or to be received by the Executive in accordance with the terms of the Employment Agreement, it is agreed as follows:

1.    Excluding enforcement of the covenants, promises and/or rights reserved herein, the Executive hereby irrevocably and unconditionally releases,
acquits and forever discharges Employer and each of Employer’s owners, stockholders, predecessors, successors, assigns, directors, officers, employees,
divisions, subsidiaries, affiliates (and directors, officers and employees of such companies, divisions, subsidiaries and affiliates) and all persons acting by,
through, under or in concert with any of them (collectively “Releasees”), or any of them, from any and all charges, complaints, claims, liabilities, obligations,
promises, agreements, controversies, damages, actions, causes of action, suits, rights, demands, costs, losses, debts and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and
costs actually incurred) of any nature whatsoever, known or unknown, suspected or unsuspected, including, but not limited to, rights arising out of alleged
violations of any contracts, express or implied, any covenant of good faith and fair dealing, express or implied, or any tort or any legal restrictions on Employer’s
right to terminate employees, or any Federal, state or other governmental statute, regulation or ordinance, including, without limitation, Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Federal Age Discrimination In Employment Act of 1967 (“ADEA”), as amended, the Employee Retirement Income Security
Act (“ERISA”), as amended, the Civil Rights Act of 1991, as amended, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, the Older Workers Benefit Protection Act
(“OWBPA”), as amended, the Worker Adjustment Retraining and Notification Act (“WARN”), as amended, the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”), as amended,
the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (“OSHA”), the New York State Human Rights Law, as amended, the New York Labor Act, as amended, the New
York Equal Pay Law, as amended, the New York Civil Rights Law, as amended,
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the New York Rights of Persons With Disabilities Law, as amended, and the New York Equal Rights Law, as amended, that the Executive now has, or has ever
had, or ever will have, against each or any of the Releasees, by reason of any and all acts, omissions, events, circumstances or facts existing or occurring up
through the date of the Executive’s execution hereof that directly or indirectly arise out of, relate to, or are connected with, the Executive’s services to, or
employment by Employer (any of the foregoing being a “Claim” or, collectively, the “Claims”); provided, however, that this release shall not apply to any of the
obligations of Employer or any other Releasee under the Employment Agreement, or under any agreements, plans, contracts, documents or programs described or
referenced in the Employment Agreement; and provided, further, that this release shall not apply to any rights the Executive may have to obtain contribution or
indemnity against Employer or any other Releasee pursuant to contract, Employer’s certificate of incorporation and by-laws or otherwise.

2.    The Executive expressly waives and relinquishes all rights and benefits afforded by California Civil Code Section 1542 and does so
understanding and acknowledging the significance of such specific waiver of Section 1542. Section 1542 states as follows:

“A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS
OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY
AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH THE DEBTOR.”

Thus, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1542, and for the purpose of implementing a full and complete release and discharge of the Releasees, the
Executive expressly acknowledges that this Agreement is intended to include in its effect, without limitation, all Claims that the Executive does not know or
suspect to exist in the Executive’s favor at the time of execution hereof, and that this Agreement contemplates the extinguishment of any such Claim or Claims.

3.    The Executive understands that he has been given a period of 21 days to review and consider this General Release before signing it pursuant to
the Age Discrimination In Employment Act of 1967, as amended. The Executive further understands that he may use as much of this 21-day period as the
Executive wishes prior to signing.

4.    The Executive acknowledges and represents that he understands that he may revoke the waiver of his rights under the Age Discrimination In
Employment Act of 1967, as amended, effectuated in this Agreement within 7 days of signing this Agreement. Revocation can be made by delivering a written
notice of revocation to General Counsel, Employer Inc., 1515 Broadway, New York, New York 10036. For this revocation to be effective, written notice must be
received by the General Counsel no later than the close of business on the seventh day after the Executive signs this Agreement. If the Executive revokes the
waiver of his rights under the Age
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Discrimination In Employment Act of 1967, as amended, Employer shall have no obligations to the Executive under paragraph 10(d) of the Employment
Agreement.

5.    The Executive and Employer respectively represent and acknowledge that in executing this Agreement neither of them is relying upon, and has
not relied upon, any representation or statement not set forth herein made by any of the agents, representatives or attorneys of the Releasees with regard to the
subject matter, basis or effect of this Agreement or otherwise.

6.    This Agreement shall not in any way be construed as an admission by any of the Releasees that any Releasee has acted wrongfully or that the
Executive has any rights whatsoever against any of the Releasees except as specifically set forth herein, and each of the Releasees specifically disclaims any
liability to any party for any wrongful acts.

7.    It is the desire and intent of the parties hereto that the provisions of this Agreement be enforced to the fullest extent permissible under law.
Should there be any conflict between any provision hereof and any present or future law, such law will prevail, but the provisions affected thereby will be
curtailed and limited only to the extent necessary to bring them within the requirements of law, and the remaining provisions of this Agreement will remain in full
force and effect and be fully valid and enforceable.

8.    The Executive represents and agrees (a) that the Executive has to the extent he desires discussed all aspects of this Agreement with his attorney,
(b) that the Executive has carefully read and fully understands all of the provisions of this Agreement, and (c) that the Executive is voluntarily entering into this
Agreement.

9.    This General Release shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York, without giving effect to the
conflicts of laws principles thereof or to those of any other jurisdiction which, in either case, could cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction other than
the State of New York. This General Release is binding on the successors and assigns of, and sets forth the entire agreement between, the parties hereto; fully
supersedes any and all prior agreements or understandings between the parties hereto pertaining to the subject matter hereof; and may not be changed except by
explicit written agreement to that effect subscribed by the parties hereto.

PLEASE READ CAREFULLY. THIS GENERAL RELEASE INCLUDES A RELEASE OF ALL KNOWN AND UNKNOWN CLAIMS.
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This General Release is executed by the Executive and Employer as of the              day of             , 20     .
 
 

Philippe P. Dauman

VIACOM INC.

By:   

Title:  
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SCHEDULE C
 

The Section 409A Amendment
 

FORM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT
(I.R.C. §409A)

This Amendment Agreement modifies certain terms and conditions of your employment agreement with Viacom Inc. or one of its subsidiaries (your
“Employment Agreement”). In this Amendment Agreement, we refer to the corporation or other entity that employs you as the “Company”, and we refer to
Viacom Inc. and its subsidiaries, collectively, as “Viacom”.

1.     Timing of Payments.    If your Employment Agreement does not already provide a schedule for the payment of your salary that is in compliance with
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code and the rules, regulations and guidance thereunder (“Section 409A”), your Employment Agreement is modified to
provide that payments of salary, less deductions and income and payroll tax withholding as may be required or authorized under applicable law, shall be payable
in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll procedures for employees generally, but no less frequently than monthly. If your Employment Agreement
provides for a payment to be made promptly or as soon as administratively practicable after or following the occurrence of a date or an event specified in the
Employment Agreement, then the payment will be made not later than 90 days following the occurrence of the date or event.

2.     Performance Shares Units.    Shares delivered in settlement of the PSUs awarded to you pursuant to your Employment Agreement will be delivered not later
than March 15 following the last year of the Measurement Period for the relevant PSU. No new terms and conditions that are approved by the Compensation
Committee, in addition to those set forth in your Employment Agreement, will apply to PSUs awarded to you pursuant to your Employment Agreement to the
extent they would affect the time or form of payment in respect of your PSUs in violation of any requirements of Section 409A that may be applicable thereto.

3.     “Termination of Employment”.    To the extent that your Employment Agreement provides for any severance or other termination payment or any other
benefits to be made or provided to you or your beneficiaries upon or as a result of your termination of employment, you will be considered to have experienced a
termination of employment as of the date that the level of bona fide services that you are expected to perform permanently decreases to no more than 20% of the
average level of bona fide services that you performed over the immediately preceding 36-month period (or the full period of services if you have been providing
services less than 36 months).

For these purposes, your “services” include services that you provide as an employee or as an independent contractor. In addition, in determining whether
you have experienced a termination of employment, the Company is obligated to take into account services you provide both for it and for any other corporation
that is a member of the same “controlled group” of corporations as the Company under Section 414(b) of the Internal Revenue Code or any other trade or
business (such as a partnership) which is under common control with the Company as determined under Section 414(c) of the Internal Revenue Code, in each
case as modified by Section 409A. In general, this means that the Company will consider services you provide to any corporation or other entity in which Viacom
Inc., directly or indirectly, possesses at least 50% of the total voting power or at least 50% of the total value of the equity interests.

For the avoidance of doubt, nothing provided in this paragraph 3 shall supercede or otherwise modify the definition of “good reason” contained in your
Employment Agreement.

4.     Timing of post-termination payments and benefits.    Unless otherwise specified herein, to the extent that your Employment Agreement does not already
provide a schedule for the payments that is in compliance with Section 409A, any payments that are required to be made under your Employment Agreement
following your termination of employment will be made at the same time and in the same manner as if you had not terminated employment. For example, any
salary continuation will be paid on the schedule described in paragraph 1 of this Amendment Agreement, and any annual bonus or pro-rated annual bonus to
which you are entitled under your Employment Agreement (whether for the year in which your termination of employment occurs or any subsequent year) will be
paid in the year following the year in which the bonus is earned prior to March 15 or, if different, at the same time, or pursuant to the same schedule, as annual
bonuses that the Company pays to continuing employees under the applicable annual bonus program. Please note that these timing rules apply following any
termination of employment, including termination of employment incident to non-renewal of the Employment Agreement.

5.     Release.    This paragraph 5 applies if your Employment Agreement conditions payment of severance or any other payments, or provision of any benefits,
following your termination of employment on your execution of a Release. For purposes of this paragraph 5, the “Release” refers to a release in a form attached
to your Employment Agreement, or if no such release is so attached, to any other form of release in use by the Company at the time of your termination of
employment. If your Employment Agreement contains such terms, then the Company shall not be required to continue making severance or other payments or
providing benefits, unless, (i) if your Employment Agreement does not specify a deadline by which you must have executed the Release and it must have become
irrevocable, by 60 days following your termination of employment or (ii) if your Employment Agreement specifies a deadline by which you must have executed
the Release and it must have become irrevocable, by such deadline, you have executed the Release and delivered it to the Company, and the Release has become
effective and irrevocable in its entirety. If the Company has ceased making severance or other payments or providing benefits pursuant to the preceding sentence
and you subsequently execute the Release, and it becomes effective and irrevocable in its entirety, the Company may resume
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making or providing such payments or benefits, but it will have no obligation to do so.

6.     Good Reason.    This paragraph 6 applies if your Employment Agreement contains a definition of “good reason,” and is intended to ensure that “good
reason” is triggered only upon a material negative change in your employment relationship with the Company. Accordingly, in order to terminate your
employment with “good reason,” you must provide the Company with a notice of termination specifying (x) the effective date of your termination and (y) the
particular condition(s) that constitute “good reason” for such termination. The notice must be provided within thirty (30) calendar days of the initial existence of
the condition(s) that are purported to constitute “good reason,” or, if later, within thirty (30) calendar days after you become aware, or with reasonable diligence
should have become aware, of the condition(s) that are purported to constitute “good reason,” and must give the Company at least thirty (30) days prior written
notice of your intent to terminate with “good reason,” during which time the Company shall be given the opportunity to cure any basis for such “good reason”;
provided, however, that there shall be no cure period with respect to events which by their nature cannot be cured. If no cure is timely effected (or if there is no
cure period due to the nature of the event), then your termination with “good reason” shall be effective as of the date of termination you specified in the notice of
termination. If a cure is timely effected, your resignation for “good reason” shall not be effective at that time. The foregoing notice and cure provision shall
supersede the notice and cure provision in your Employment Agreement, if any.

7.     Death.    To the extent that your Employment Agreement provides for a lump-sum severance payment or other lump-sum payment to be made as a result of
your death, such lump sum payment will be made no later than the 60th day following your death. This provision applies only to amounts which, under your
Employment Agreement, are to be paid in a lump sum. Any payment or benefit which, under the terms of your Employment Agreement, is to be made following
your death as a continuing stream of payments (such as salary continuation), and any payments of annual bonus or other incentive compensation to which your
estate or beneficiary is entitled following your death and which are not included in any lump sum payment, shall be made to your estate or beneficiary at the same
time and in the same manner as if you were still actively employed with the Company.

8.     Severance Plan Adjustment.    In the event that you are entitled to any election between severance options (e.g., a choice between amounts available under a
severance plan and your severance entitlement under the Employment Agreement), then the amounts, but not the time or form of payment, of your severance
entitlement under the Employment Agreement shall automatically be adjusted to equal whichever is the greater amount in the aggregate of such severance
options, The time and form of payment shall continue as specified in the terms of your Employment Agreement. In no event, however, will any such adjustment
alter the time or form of the payments to which you are entitled.

9.     No Offsets.    If your Employment Agreement gives the Company the right to reduce or otherwise offset against amounts owed to you in order to satisfy any
obligations you owe the Company, such provision is modified to provide that the Company shall not make any deductions for money or property that you owe to
the Company from amounts that constitute deferred compensation for purposes of Section 409A, except for applicable withholding taxes on such amounts and
otherwise only to the extent that such deduction would not cause any person to incur any tax, interest or penalties under Section 409A.

10.     Required Delay in Payment for Viacom’s “Specified Employees”.    In the event that, at the time of your termination of employment, you are a “specified
employee,” as determined by Viacom Inc., then to the extent that any amount or benefit owed to you under your Employment Agreement (x) constitutes an
amount of deferred compensation for purposes of Section 409A and (y) is considered for purposes of Section 409A to be owed to you by virtue of your
termination of employment, then such amount or benefit shall not be paid or provided during the six-month period following the date of your termination of
employment and instead shall be paid or provided on the first day of the seventh month following your date of termination of employment, except to the extent
that, in Viacom’s reasonable judgment, payment during such six-month period would not cause any person to incur additional tax, interest or penalties under
Section 409A. Delay in payment or provision of benefits during the six months following your termination of employment is referred to as the “Six-Month
Delay”.

It is noted that to the extent that your Employment Agreement provides for payments or benefits to be provided solely upon your “involuntary” termination
of employment (as determined under Section 409A), the Six-Month Delay will not apply to the extent that such payments and benefits, in the aggregate, do not
exceed an amount equal to the lesser of:

(x) two times your “annualized compensation” as determined in accordance with Section 409A (in general, this amount is your annual rate of pay for the
year preceding the year in which your employment terminates, adjusted for any increases during the year your employment terminates that were expected
to continue indefinitely); and

(y) two times the applicable annual compensation limit under Section 401(a)(17) of the Internal Revenue Code for the year in which your termination
occurs (for 2008, this amount is two times $230,000, or $460,000).



To minimize the risk that the Six-Month Delay will disrupt your coverage under any medical, dental and life insurance coverage to which you are entitled
following your termination of employment, payments described in the preceding sentence that are made during the six months following your termination of
employment shall first be applied to cover any costs relating to such continued medical, dental and life insurance coverage that otherwise would constitute
deferred compensation for purposes of Section 409A, and thereafter shall be made in respect of other amounts or benefits owed to you.
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11.     Designation of Separate Payments.    If, under any provision of your Employment Agreement, you become entitled to be paid salary continuation, then each
payment of salary during the relevant continuation period shall be considered, and is hereby designated as, a separate payment for purposes of Section 409A (and
consequently your entitlement to such salary continuation shall not be considered an entitlement to a single payment of the aggregate amount to be paid during
the relevant salary continuation period).

12.     Reimbursement.    If your Employment Agreement provides for reimbursements that constitute deferred compensation for purposes of Section 409A, in no
event shall the reimbursements be paid later than the last day of the calendar year following the year in which the related expense was incurred. Reimbursements
of attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses of disputes under your Employment Agreement that are deferred compensation for purposes of Section 409A must
be paid no later than the last day of the year following the year in which there is a settlement or other final and nonappealable resolution of the dispute.

13.      Excise Taxes.    Any payment to reimburse you for excise taxes required to be paid by Viacom pursuant to your Employment Agreement and any “gross-
up” for the payment of the excise taxes shall be paid no later than the end of the calendar year following the year in which the taxes are paid. Any reimbursement
of expenses incurred due to a tax audit or litigation asserting liability for such excise taxes shall be made no later than the end of the year following the year in
which the disputed taxes are paid or in which there is a final and non-appealable resolution as a result of which no taxes are paid. Any reduction of the payments
and benefits under your Employment Agreement to avoid imposition of such excise taxes shall be applied first to the severance and bonus payments and next the
other payments and benefits (other than medical, dental or life insurance coverage and reimbursements of expenses) under your Employment Agreement and, in
each case, shall be applied pro rata across such payments and benefits in proportion to the amounts on which such excise taxes would otherwise be imposed.

14.      Further Amendments.    The Company may, without your consent, amend any provision of your Employment Agreement to the extent that, in the
reasonable judgment of the Company, such amendment is necessary or advisable to avoid your becoming subject to federal income tax on any amount or benefit
under your Employment Agreement before such amount is actually paid or such benefit is actually provided, to avoid the imposition on any person of any
additional tax, interest or penalties pursuant to Section 409A. Any such amendment shall maintain and protect, to the maximum extent practicable, the original
intent and economic benefit to you of the applicable provision. Except in the case of any amendment made without your written consent, Viacom shall not have
any obligation to indemnify you or hold you (or any beneficiary) harmless from any or all of such taxes or penalties.

Except as otherwise provided herein, your Employment Agreement shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with its terms.
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Philippe P. Dauman, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Viacom Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

 

 
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

 
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely

to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

 
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2010

 
/s/    Philippe P. Dauman
Philippe P. Dauman
President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Thomas E. Dooley, certify that:
 

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Viacom Inc.;
 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

 

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

 

 
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure

that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 

 
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,

to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 

 
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness

of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 

 
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal

quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

 

 
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely

to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 

 
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting.

Date: April 29, 2010

 
/s/    Thomas E. Dooley
Thomas E. Dooley
Senior Executive Vice President,
Chief Administrative Officer and
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Viacom Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Philippe P. Dauman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify that to my knowledge:
 

 1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

 2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
/s/    Philippe P. Dauman
Philippe P. Dauman
April 29, 2010

This written statement is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Report. A signed original of this written statement
required by Section 906 has been provided to Viacom Inc. and will be retained by Viacom Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its
staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to

Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Viacom Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended March 31, 2010 as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I, Thomas E. Dooley, Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify that to my knowledge:
 

 1. the Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
 

 2. the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.
 
/s/    Thomas E. Dooley
Thomas E. Dooley
April 29, 2010

This written statement is being furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Report. A signed original of this written statement
required by Section 906 has been provided to Viacom Inc. and will be retained by Viacom Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its
staff upon request.


